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July 10, 2015

NOTICE TO STOCKHOLDERS:'
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.
Felipe L. Gozon
Joel Marcelo G. JimensZ
Jaime C. Laya
Artemio V. Panganiban

‘Manue! P. Quiogue

Felipe S. Yalong
Dear Stockholder

Please be informed that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of GMA Holdings, InC.
has been reset 10 August 13, 2045 (Thursday) at 10:00 a.m. at Balducci, G/F
Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City to consider, discuss or
vote on the following -

Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting held on May 30, 2014.

Report of the President :

Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

Election of Directors, inciuding the independent Directors

Election of the External Auditor ' :

Consideration of such other business a3 may properly come before the
meeting
9. Adjournment

o~N®u s

Any stockholder may vote by proxy provided that such authorization remains unrevoked

_ and on file with, or is submitted to, the undersigned at the 15/F Sagittarius Building, H.V.

De la Costa Street, galcedo Village, Makati City.

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of April 29 2015 shall be
entitied to vote.

The Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. Thank you.

For the Roard of Directors:

//2-//%%_,% ,/
‘ ANNA-TERESA M. GOZON ROGAR

Corporate Secretary



o

We are not soliciting your proxy. However, if you are unable to attend the meeting but wouid
like to be represented thereat, you may accomplish the proxy form herein provided below and
submit the same to the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before May 27, 2015. You may
deliver the proxy or send it in advance through fax.no. (632) 812-0008. Validation of proxies
shall be held on August 12, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. at the GMA Network Center.

PROXY

I/We hereby name and appoint _ or in his/her absence, the Chairman
of the meeting, as my/our proxy at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of GMA Holdings, Inc. to
be held at Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City on '
Friday, August 13, 2015 at 10:00 a.m. and at any postponement or adjournment thereof.

" Name

Signature

Date

No. of Shares Held



10.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-18

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Check the appropriate box:

[ ¥] Preliminary Information Statement

[ ] Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: PHILIPPINES
SEC Identification Number C5200602356

BIR Tax identification Code 244-658-896-000

Address of principal office Postal Code

UNIT 5D TOWER ONE, ONE MCKINLEY PLACE, NEW BONIFACIO GLOBAL CITY,
FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY

Registrant’s telephone number, inciuding area code (632) 9827777

Date, time and place of the mesting of security holders

DATE : August 13, 2015

TIME 10:00 a.m.

PLACE: Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Globa! City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City

‘Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to

security holders
July 23, 2015

In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: NOT APPLICABLE
Address and Telephone No.: NOT APPLICABLE

3



10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of
the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to

corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock

Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Qutstanding

Philippine Depositary Receipts (“PDRs”) 846,831,300

12.  Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exdhange?

PDRs/PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

This Information Statement dated July 23, 2015, is being furnished to the stockholders of
record of GMA Holdings, Inc. as of April 29, 2015 in connection with the Annual Stockholders’

Mesting.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE
REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US-A PROXY.

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

ltem 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

(a) State the date, time and place of the meeting

Date August 13, 2015

Time 10:00 a.m. .

Place: Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City

(b) Approximate date on which copies of the information statement are first to be sent to the

security holders:

July 23, 2015



item 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines grants to a shareholder the right to dissent
and demand payment of the fair value of his share in certain instances, to wit: (1) in case any
amendment to the corporation’s articles of incorporation has the effect of changing and
restricting the rights of any shareholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any ciass; (2) in case of any sale, lease,
exchange, transfer, mortgage or other disposition of all or substantially all of the corporate
property or assets; (3) in case of merger or consolidation; (4) in case the corporation decides to
invest its funds in-another corporation or business or for any purpose other than the primary
purpose; and (5) oxtension or shortening of the term of corporate existence.

Under Section 42 of the Corporation Code, a stockhotder is likewise given an appraisal right in
cases where a corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation of business. The
appraisal right may be exercised by a stockholder who shall have voted against any of the
foregoing corporate actions proposed in a meeting . by making written demand on the
corporation for the payment of the fair value of his/its shares within 30 days after the date on
which the vote is taken. Failure to make written demand within such period shall be deemed a
waiver of such right. If the proposed action is implemented, the corporation shall payto a
stockholder surrendering hisfits stock certificates the fair value of such shares as of the day
prior to the date on which the vote was faken; however, No payment shall-be made to any
stockholider unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
payment. Within ten days after demanding. payment for his shares, a dissenting stockholder
shall submit his stock certificates for notation thereon that such shares are dissenting shares,
failing which, his/its appraisal right shall, at the option of the corporation, terminate. Upon
payment of the purchase price for the shares, the stockholder must transfer his shares to the

corporation.
From the time a demand for payment of fair value until either the abandonment of the corporate
action involved or the purchase of said shares by the corporation, ali rights accruing to such

shares, including voting and dividend rights, shall be suspended. If the dissenting stockholder is
not paid the value of the shares within 30 days after the award, his voting and dividend rights

shall be restored.

None of the proposed corporate actions qualifies as an instance for a possible exercise by
security holders of their appraisal rights under Titte X of the Corporation Code of the

Philippines.

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a) There is no matter to be acted upon in which any Director or Executive Officer is
involved or had a direct, indirect or substantial interest.

(b) No Director has informed the Company of his opposition to any matter to be acted upon.



B, CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ltem 4. Voting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) GMA Holdings, Inc. “(“the Compahy”) has 10,000 common. shares subscribed and
outstanding as of June 30, 2015. Every stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for
each common share held as of the established record date.

(b) All stockholders of record as of the closing of business on April 29, 2015 are entitled to
notice of and to vote at the Com pany’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

(c) With respect to the election of directors, a stockholder may vote such number of shares -

for as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may accumulate said
shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected
or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall
see fit; provided, that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the total
number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole number of directors to be

glected.

(d) The following are the information on security ownership of certain record and beneficial
owners and management:

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners as of June 30, 2015‘

As of Jurie 30, 2015, the following persons owned at least 5% of the Company’s outstanding
common shares:

Title of Name, Address of Name of Beneficial Citizenship | No.of | Percent-j
class Record Owner and Owner and Shares age of
Relationship with Relationship with : Held Class
Company Record Owner
Common | Felipe L. Gozon The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30

Unit 5 5D Tower Cne, One the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,

Eort Bonifacio, Taguig City .
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. The Record owner i$ Filipino 3,330 | 33.30

Common
Unit 5 50 Tower One, One the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City, ‘
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City
Common | Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez The Record owner is Fllipino 3,330 33.30

Unit 5 5D Tower One, One the Beneficial Owner
McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio City,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Total | 9,990 99.90 |




Felipe L. Gozon, Gilberto R Duavit, Jr. and Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez are significant
stockholders of the Company.

Security Ownership of Management as of June 30, 2015:

As of June 30, 2015, the Company's directors and senior officers ownaed an aggregate of
96,096 common shares of the Company, equivalent fo 99.96% of the Company’s issued and

~ outstanding common capital stock.

Title of Name of Amount and | Citizenship | Percentage
Class Beneficial Owner Nature of of Class
‘ . Beneficial
Ownership
Common Felipe L. Gozon Direct Filipino 33.30
' ‘ 3,330
Common Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Direct Filipino 33.30
- 3,330
Common Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Direct Filipino 33.30
, 3,330 ‘ .
Common Artemio V. Panganiban Direct Filipino 04
4
Common Jaime C. Laya Direc Filipino .01
" 1 . -
Common Felipe S. Yalong Direct Filipino - | .01
Total 99,996 99.96

Voting Trust Holders of more than 5%

The Company is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of shares under a voting trust
or similar arrangement.

Changes in Control

The Company is not aware of any arrangement which may have resulted in a change in control
of the Company during the period covered by this report. -

Foreign Equity

consisting of common shares) are wholly-owned by Filipinos. While the
PDRs issued.by the Company may be owned by any person regardless of citizenship or
nationality, the exercise of which is subject to the nationality restriction under -the Philippine
Constitution prohibiting foreign ownership in mass media companies. As a result, the

Underlying Shares (GMA Network, Inc. commen shares) resulting from an exercise of.the
d to Philippine citizens or corporations, cooperatives or associations

PDRs may only be issue ) .
wholly owned and managed by Philippine citizens. Although holders of PDRs will enjoy

7

The Company’s equity (




economic rights upon occurrence of certain events in respect of the Underlying Shares, they
will not have any voting rights in respect of the Underlying Shares. Such voting rights will, until

exercise of the PDR, be retained and exercised by GH! or the Company. Pending exercise of
the PDRs, the Shares deliverable on exercise of the PDRs shall be owned by and registered in
the name of the Issuer. The Shares underlying the PDRs have been delivered and pledged by
the Issuer to the Pledge Trustee, and held to the order and for the benefit of the Holders as
security for the delivery of the Shares upon exercise of the PDRs pursuant to the Pledge. Until
an exercise of a PDR, the Issuer, as owner of Shares underlying the relevant PDR, will retain.

and exercise such voting rights relating to such Shares.
[tem 5. Directdrs and Executive Officers

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directoré

The following were nominated as members of the Board of Directors for. the ensuing year
(2015-2016): ‘

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcslo G. Jimenez

Jaime C. Laya (Independent Director)

Artemio V. Panganiban (Indspendent Director)

All the nominees are incumbent directors. The nominees were formally nominated by Gilberto
R. Duavit, Jr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. has no relationship with the nominated independent

directors, Jaime C. Laya and Artemio V. Panganiban.

The Company's 'By-laws provide that all nominations to the Board of Directors shail be
submitted in writing to the Nomination Committee before the date of the regular annual meeting -
of the stockholders. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the qualifications of the

nominees and approved the final list of candidates.
The members of the Nomination Committee ar.e as follows:

Felipe L. Gozon (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. '
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya

Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Ménaqement

on of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company
comprises five directors, two of whom-are independent. The directors have a term of one year
and are elected annually at the Company’s stockholders meeting. A director who is elected to
fill a vacancy holds the office only for the unexpired term of his predecessor. As of June 30,
2015, the Company’s Board of Directors and Senior Management were composed of the

following:

Under the Articles of Incorporati



Board of Directors Senior Management
Year . ' Year
Directors and Senior . R " Position . Position
Management Nationality Position was Position Was Age
Assumed Assumed
. ] ™ Chairman/
Felipe L. Gozon Filipine Director 2007 NIA N/A 75
Gilberio R._Duavit, Jr. Filipine Director 2007 President/Chisf Executive Officer 2007 51
Joe! Marcelo G. Jimenez Filipino Director 2007 N/A NfA 51
Chief Financial Officer/Chief
Felipe §. Yalong Filipino Corporate Treasurer 2007 Operating Officer 2012 58
Artemio V. Panganiban Filipino Indepandent Director 2009 MR NIA 78
Jatme C. Laya Fiiipino Independent Director. 2008 NIA NIA 76
Ronaldo P. Mastri Filipino | N/A \a | CompirollerChisf Accounting 2007 49
Qfficer
Roberio O. Parel Fitipino N/A NiA Vige-President/ Compllance Officer 2013 59
Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar Filipino Corporale Secretary 2007 N/A . N/A 43

Felipe L. Gozon, Filipino, 75 years old, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer of the Network.

Atty Gozon is a Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Luciia.
Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is also Chairman and CEOQ of GMA Marketing and
Productions, Inc. and GMA New Media, Inc.. Chairman and President of FLG Management and
Development Corp., and Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corp.; Chairman of Alta.
Productions Group, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc., Philippine
Entertainment Portal, Inc., Justitia Realty and Management Corp., Palawan Power Generation,
Inc., Catanduanes Power Generation, Inc., Sycamore Globa! Shipping Corporation, Sycamore
International Shipping Corporation, Cardinal Agri Products, Inc.,and RGMA Network, Inc.; Vice
Chairman of Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank: President of, among other companies,
Gozon Development Corp., Gozon Realty Corp., Antipolo Agri-Business and Land Development
Corp., Capitalex Holdings, Inc., BGE Holdings, Inc., Philippine Chamber of Commerce and

Industry, Chamber of Commerce of the Philippine tslands and President of Lex Realty, inc. He
f the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, inc., Kapwa Ko

serves as Chairman ©
Maha! Ko Foundation, Inc., and The Potter and Clay Christian School Foundation, Inc;

Chairman and President of Gozon Foundation; and Trustee of Bantayog ng mga Bayani
Foundation. Gozon is also an Advisory Board Member of the Asian Television Awards.

Alty. Gozon is a recipient of several awards for his achievement in law, media, public service,
and business, including the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given by the Chief Justice
of the Philippines (1991), Presidential Award of Merit given by the Philippine Bar Association
(1990 & 1993), CEO of the Year given by Uno Magazine (2004}, Master Entrepreneur —
Philippines (2004) by Ernst and Young, Outstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and
Business Management by the Kalipunan ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMA) (2005), People of
the Year by People Asia Magazine (2005), Outstanding Manilan Award in the field of Social
Responsibility and Broadcasting given by the City Government of Manila (2011), Quezon City
Gawad Parangal Most Outstanding Citizen for 2011 given by the City Government of Quezon
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(2011), Tycoon of the Decade Award given by BizNews Asia (2011), Lifetime Achievement
Award given by the UP Alumni Association (2012), Certificate of Recognition given by the Civil
Aeronautics Board (2012), Personality of the Year for Broadcast Media given by SKAL
international Makati (2013), Outstanding Member-Achiever given by Phi Kappa Phi UP Chapter
(International Honor Society) (2013), Visionary Management CEOQ Award given by BizNews
Asia (2013), Lifetime Achievement Award given by UP Preparatory High School Alumni (2014),
Entrepreneurship Excellence Award and Best Broadcast CEO Award given by BizNews Asia
(2014), The Rotary Golden Whee! Award for Corporate Media Management given by Rotary
International District 3780 and Quezon City Government (2014), and Global Leadership Award
for Excelience in Media Sector (first Filipino to win the award) given by The Leaders
International together with the American Leadership. Development Association in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia (2015). He is also listed among Biz News Asia's Power 100 (2003 to 2010).

Atty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (among
the first 10 of his class) and his Master of Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He
was admitted to the Bar in 1962, placing 13th in the Bar examinations.

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Filipino, 51 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of
the Network. He has been a Director of the Company since 1999 and is currently the Chairman
of the Network’s Executive Committee. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is the Chairman of
the Board of GMA Network Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. and Vice Chairman of the
Board of GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc. He also serves as President and CEQ of GMA
Holdings, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc., Film Experts, Inc., and
‘Dual Management and Investments, Inc. He is the President and a Director of Group
Management and Development, Inc.; President and Director of MediaMerge Corp., Citynet
Network Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New Media,
Inc., Alta Productions Group, Inc., Optima Digital, inc., and Mont-Aire Realty and Development
Corp. He also serves as the President and a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc., Trustee
of Guronasyon Foundation, Inc. (formerly LEAF) and is a Trustee of the HERO Foundation.

Mr. Duavit holds a Bacheior’s Degree in Philosophy from the University of the Philippines.

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez, Filipino, 51 years old, has been a Director of the Company since
2002. He is currently the President and CEO of Menarco Holdings and the Chief Executive
Officer of Alta Productions, Inc. He is a Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New Media, Inc.,
Scenarios, Inc., and GMA Worldwide, Inc., besides also being a member of the Board of
Directors of Malayan Savings and Mortgage Bank, and Unicapital Securities, Inc. He is also a
Director of Nuvoland Philippines, a real-estate development company. He is a Trustee of GMA

Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

He was educated in Los Angeles, California where he obtained a Bachelor's Degree in
Business Administration from Loyola Marymount University. He also obtained a Master's
Degree in Management from the Asian Institute of Management.

Id, is the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of GMA Network, inc. He is also the Head of the Corporate Services Group of the
Network. He has been a Director of the Company since 2002. Aside from GMA Network, Inc.,
he also serves as Director and Corporate Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc., Scenarios, Inc., and

Felipe S. Yaiong, Filipino, 58 years 0
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GMA Network Films, Inc.; Director of Unicapital, Inc., Majalco Finance and Investments, Inc.,
and GMA Marketing and Productions, Inc.; Corporate Treasurer of RGMA Network, Inc.,
MediaMerge Corp.; Executive Vice President of RGMA Marketing and. Productions, Inc.; and
Corporate Treasurer of the Board of Trustees of GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

Yalong was named CFO of the Year by ING FINEX in 2013. . ,
He obtained a Bachelor of Science degree in Business Administration Major in Accounting from

the Philippine Schoot of Business Administration and completed the Management Development
Program at the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Dr. Jaime C. Laya, Filipino, 76 years old, has been an independent Director of GMA Network,
inc. since 2007. He is the Chairman and President of Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust
Bank), Director of Ayala Land, Inc., Manila Water Company, Inc., and Philippine AXA Life
Insurance Company, inc. He also serves as Chairman of Don Norberto Ty. Foundation, Inc.
and Escuela Taller de Filipinas Eoundation, inc.; Trustee of St. Paul University - Quezon City,
Cultural Center of the Philippines, Metropolitan Museum - of Manila, Yuchengco Museum,
Fundacion Santiago, Inc., Ayala Foundation, Inc., and other foundations. He writes a weekly

column for the Manila Bulletin.

He was Minister of Budget, 1975-1981; Minister of Education, Culture and Sports, 1984-86;
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1984,
Chairman, National Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was faculty member
of the University of the Philippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the College of Business
Administration, 1969-1974. in 1986, he founded J.C. Laya & Co., Ltd. (Certified Public

Accountants and Management Consultants) later the Philippine member firm of KPMG
international; he served as the firm's Chairman until his retirement in - 2004.

He earned his BSBA, magna cum jaude, University of the Philippines, 1857; M.S. in Industrial
Management, Georgia Institute of Technology, 1960; Ph.D. in Financial Management, Stanford

University, 1966. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban, Filipino, 78 years old, has been an independent
Director of the Company since 2007. In 1995, he was named a Justice of the Supreme Court
and in 2005, he was appointed Chief Justice of the Philippines — a position he held until
December 2006. At present, he is also an Independent Director of these listed firms: First
Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific [nvestments Corp., Manila Electric Company,
Robinsons Land Corp., GMA Holdings, Inc., Philippine Long Distance Telephone Co., Petron
Corporation, Bank of the Phifippine Islands, Asian Teiminals, and a regular Director of Jollibee
Foods Corporation. He is also & Senior Adviser of Metropolitan Bank, Chairman, Board of
Advisers of Metrobank Foundation, Adviser of Double Dragon Properties, Chairman of the
Board of the Foundation for Liberty and Prosperity, President of the Manila Cathedral Basilica

Foundation, Chairman Emeritus of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc., and Member,
Bank (Philippines) and of the Asian Institute of Management

Advisory Board of the World 7 1 Ing _ .
Corporate Governance Council. He also is a column writer of The Philippine Daily Inquirer.

Upon his retirement, he was unanimously conferred a Plague of Acclamation by the Associate
Justices of the Supreme Court as the “Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Award
of Honor by the Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his role as a jurist, lawyer; Givic

11



leader, Catholic lay worker, business entrepreneur and youth leader, he had been the recipient
of over 250 other awards from various governments, Civic clubs, consumer associations, bar
groups, religious movements and other non-government organizations, both local and

international.

He obtained his Associate in Arts, “With Highest Honors” and later his Bachelor of Laws, with
cum laude and “Most Outstanding student” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed
sixth among more than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar examinations. He is likewise
the recipient of several honorary doctoral degrees from various universities. :

Atty. Roberto O. Parel, Filipino, 59 years old, has been the Corporate Secretary of the
Company since 1993. He is a Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Eima Parel Asuncion &
Lucila. His practice areas include labor relations, natural resources and intellectual property. He
is a Director of Time-Life International Philippines, Berong Nickel Corporation, Ulugan Nickel
Corporation, Ulugan Resources Holdings, Inc., Nickeline Resources Holdings, Inc., TMM
Management inc. and Assetiex Development Company, Inc.; Corporate Secretary of Alta
Productions Group, Inc., Scenarios, inc., Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc. and

GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc.

He graduated from the University of the Philippines with a Bachelor of Arts degree in
Philosophy and a Bachelor of Laws degree. He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1981. Atty.
Parel further pursued legal studies through short programs at the Center of American and
International Law and the Southwestern Legal Foundation in Dallas, Texas. Later, he attended
a training program an industrial Property Rights held by the Japan Institute of Invention and
Innovation and the Association for Overseas Technical Scholarship in Tokyo, Japan.

Atty. Anna Teresa G. Abrogar, Filipino, 43 years old, has been a Director of the Company
since 2000. Atty. Anna Teresa G. Abrogar graduated valedictorian from grade school and high
school at Colegio San Agustin. She graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from
Ateneo de Manila University and obtained her Bachelor of Laws degree from the University: of
the Philippines where she graduated valedictorian, cum laude. She later obtained her Master of

Laws from Harvard University.

She is a junior partner in Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila and was an Associate
Professor in the University of the Philippines, College of Law where she taught taxation.

the Chairman/CEO of GMA Network, Inc. and the

She is currently Programming Consultant to
orldwide, Inc. She is a frustee of GMA Kapuso

President of GMA Films, inc. and GMA W
Foundation.

Ronaldo P. Mastrili, Filipino, 49 years old, is the Senior Vice President of GMA's Finance and
ICT Departments. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Business and Economics degree,
major in Accounting from De La Salle University. He attended the Master in Business
Administration Program from the same university and completed the Executive Development
Program of the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant with
expertise in the fields of accounting, auditing, finance, taxation and general management. He
was formerly the Assistant Vice President of Controllership of ABS-CBN and also served as its
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Group Internal Auditor before joining GMA Network in March 2001. He also worked with SGV
and Co. in the early part of his career. Mr. Mastrili concurrently holds key positions in GMA
Subsidiaries namely: Comptrolier/Chief Accounting Officer of GMA Holdings, Treasurer of Alta
Productions, Director of Script2010, and Comptroller of GMA Films, GMA Kapuso Foundation

and GMA Worldwide.

Sianificant Employees

Although the Company will continue to rely on the individual and collective contributions of their
executive officers, the Company is not dependent on the services of any particuiar employee.

Family Relationships

Anna Teresa M. Gozon-Abrogar is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Felipe L. Gozon’s sister,
Carolina L. Gozon Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez.

Involvement in_Certain Lega! Proceedings

To the best of the Company's knowledge, during the past five years and up to the date of this
Information Statement, there has baen no occurrence of any of the following events which are
material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become
a director, executive officer, or control person of the Company:

o Any filing of an insolvency or bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which
such person was a general partner or exacutive officer, either at the time of the

insolvency or within two years prior to that time;

o Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of any such person, exciuding traffic

violations and other minor offenses;

e Any final and executory order, judgment, of decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, against any such person, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting involvement in any type of business,

securities, commodities, of banking activities; and

Any final and executory jtjdgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, or a
domestic or foreign exchange or slectronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization,

for violation of a gecurities or commodities law.
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" Resignation of Directors

No director has resigned or de

clined to stand for re-election to the‘ Board of Directors since the
date of the initial organization of the Company because of a disagreement with the Company on
 matters relating to the Company's operations, policies and practices. '

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On May 30, 2008, the Com

pany engaged

as its legal counsel Belo Gozon Elma Parél Asuncion

& Lucila (“BGEPAL") where Atty. Felipe L. Gozon is a Senior Partner. Atty. Gozon is the

Chairman and one of the major stockholders of the Company. The Company and BGEPAL are

currently negotiating the fees in relation to the services provided, ensuring that the same is

done on an arm’s length basis.

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares.
The proceeds owing to the selling shareholders of GMA Network, Inc. (“Selling Shareholders”)
whose Common Shares formed the underlying shares of the PDRs in the Company’s Initial

Public Offering were initially held by the Company then remi
Company's Financial Statements.

Please see Note 10 of the

Other than the foregoing,

the Company ha

tted to these Selling Shareholders.

s had no materia! transactions during the past two

years, nor is any material transaction presently proposed between the Company and parties
that fall outside the definition of “related parties” under SEAS/IAS No. 24, but with whom the

registrants or its related parties have a relationship that ena
of material transactions that may not be availed from other, mor

an arm’s length basis.

ltem 6. Compensation of Dire

ctors and Executive Officers

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The following sets forth the summary of the Company’s compen

Name and Position
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe S. Yalong
Ronaldo P. Mastrili

CEO and the highest
compensated officers named

above

bresident and Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer/ Chief Operating Officer
Chief Accounting Officer/ Gom ptrofier

Year Salaries Bonuses  Other
{in {in Income

thousands) thousands)

2012

14

bles the parties 10 negotiate terms
e clearly independent parties on

sation to its executive officers:

Total
o (in
thousands}



2013 - - - -
2014 - - - -
. 20156 - - -
(estimate) ‘ :

Aggregate compensation paid
to all officers and directors as 2012 - - -
a group unnamed ' ‘
2013 ‘ ‘ - -
2014 - - - -
2015 o
(estimate) i )

No director or officer receives or has received compensation for their services. The By-Laws of
the Company however, provides that each director is entitled to a reasonable per diem
allowance for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors. The By-Laws further
provide that the Board may receive and allocate an amount of not more than 10% of the net
income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such compensation
shall be determined and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the Board may
deem proper, subject to the approval of the stockholders representing at least a majority of the

stockholders.

The Company has no other arrangement with regard to the ‘remuneration of its existing
directors and officers aside from the compensation received as herein stated.

ent Contracts, Termination of Employment, Change-in-control Arrangements

Employm

The directors and executive officers do not have any employment contracts, and are elected to
their respective positions on a yearly basis. The Company has no compensatory plans or
arrangements with respect to any executive officer that would result from the resignation,
retirement or any other termination of such executive officer’s employment.

ltem 7. Independent Pubiic Accountants

(a) SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. ("SGV & Co.”) has acted as the Company's external
auditors since 2007. SGV & Co. is being recommended for re-election at the scheduled

Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on August 13, 2015.

(b) Representatives of SGV & Co. for the current year and for the most recently completed
fiscal year are expected to be present at the Annua! Stockholders’ Meeting. They will
have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be

available to respond 1o appropriate guestions.
ame publicly listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on July 30,

) (iv), the Company has engaged Ms.
the Company’s 201 4audited financial

The Com-pany bec
2007. Pursuant to Rule 68 paragraph 3 (P
Marydith C. Miguel, partner of SGV & Co., to sign

statements.
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(c) Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure.

The Company has not had any disagreements on-accounting and financial disclosures
with its current external auditors during the two most recent fiscal years or any

subsequent interim period.

(d) SGV & Co. professional fees billed for its year-end financial audit of the Company
" covering the years 2013, 2012 and 2011 amounted to P75 thousand per year. These
included the fees related to financial audit and services for general tax compliance. No

other fees of any nature were paid.

(d) The Company’s Audit Committee was formed in 2008.. The Audit Committee reviews the
fee arrangements with the external auditor and recommends the same to the Board of

Directors.

The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:

Dr. Jaime C. Laya (Chairman)

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban
Felipe S. Yalong { Corporate Treasurer)

liem 8. Compensation Plans

No action shall be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash
compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

ltem 9. Authorization or |ssuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

No action shall be taken with respect to the authorization or issuance of any securities
otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the Company.

item 10. Modificatioh or Exchange of Securities

No action shall be taken with respect to the modification of any class of securities of the
Company, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one class of securities of the

Company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.
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ltem 11. Financial and Other Information

In connection with Item 11 hereof, the Company has incorporated by reference the following as
contained in the Management Report prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the Securities

and Regulation Code:

a. Audited Financial Statements for December 31, 2013 and 2014,
b. Management's Discussion and Analysis or plan of operation; and

c. Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of
securities and dividends paid out, and corporate governance -

Item 12. N‘lergers; Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

No action is to be taken with respect to the mergers, consolidations, acquiéitions and similar
matters. '

Item 13. Acquisition dr Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken with respect to the acquisition or disposition of any property.

lem 14, Restatement of Accounts

No action is to be taken with respect tlo the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus' account
of the Company.

D. OTHER MATTERS

————

ltem 15. Action with Respect to Reports

a. Approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ending December 31, 2014.

b. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on May 31, 2013.
The salient matters are summarized as follows:

(1) Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders’ Meeting held on May 25, 2012

(2) Report of the President
(3) Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the Previous Year

(4) Amendment of the Articles of Incorporation 10 state the specific address of
the Corporation’s principal office pursuant to SEC MC No. 6, Series of 2014

(5) Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors
(6) Election of the External Auditor

17



c. Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for
the period covering May 31, 2014 to August 13, 2015 adopted in the

ordinary course of business involving :
> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

> Appointment of signatories;
> Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last May 30,

2014
> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’

Meeting
> Approval of the Financial Statements

item 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

All actions or matters to be submitted in the mesting will require the vote of the security holders.

[tem 17. Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

Upon approval of the stockholders, the Articles of Incorporation of the Company will be further
amended to state the specific address of the Company’s principal office pursuant to SEC MC

No. 6, Series of 2014.

ltem 18. Other Proposed Action

(a) Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers:

(1) Declaration of Cash Dividends of P0.27 per share by GMA Network Inc.
on April 2, 2014 to PDR Holders. The record date for the PDR holders
who were entitled to receive the cash amounts was on April 24, 2014
(Thursday) [the same record date for GMA Network, Inc. stockholders]

and the cash amounts were distributed to the PDR holders on May 20,

2014 (Tuesday).

(i) Al acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for
the period covering May 31, 2013 to May 30, 2014 adopted in the
ordinary course of business involving
> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;
> Appointment of signatories;
> Approval of the minutes of the,organizational meeting last May 30,
2014
> Approval of the re

Meeting
> Approval of the Financial Statements

cord date and venue of the Annua! Stockholders'
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(b) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including two independent
directors for the ensuing calendar year

(c) Election of the External Auditor

ltem 19. Voting Procedures

(a) Vote Required: Motions, in general, require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares

of the Company’s common stock present and/or represented and entitled to vote. However,
under Philippine law, certain proposed actions may require the vote of at least two thirds
(2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. The manner of voting is non-
cumulative, except as to the election of directors.

(b) Method: Straight and cumulative voting. In the election of directors, the five (5) nominees
garnering the highest number of votes shall be elected directors. The stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many person as there are directors to be elacted, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to
be elected, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as.
he shall see fit; provided, the total number of votes cast by him shali not exceed the number
of shares owned by him multiplied by the number of directors to be elected.

If there are more than five nominees, voting shall be done by secret ballot. If there are only
five nominees, voting shall be done by a show of hands.

The Corporéte Secretary or the Secretary of the meeting shall be responsible for validating
the votes if the voting is done by secret ballot. The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of
the meeting shall likewise be responsible if the voting is done by a show of hands.

Other than the nominees’ election as directors, no director, executive officer, nominee or
associate of the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or
otherwise in any way of the matters to be taken upon during the mesting. The Company has not
received any information that an officer, director or stockholder intends to oppose any action 1o

be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

Upon written request of the stockholders, the Company undertakes fo furnish said
stockholder with a copy of the SEC Form 17-A free of charge. Any written request for a
copy of the SEC Form 17-A shall be addressed to the foilowing: ' -

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

9/F GMA NETWORK CENTER
EDSA corner Timog Avenue
Diliman, Quezon City

Attention: Ronaldo P. Mastr_iii
Chief Accounting Officer
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The Company’s first quarter interim financial report is attached herewith and is also
available in the Company’s website.

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowiedge and belief, | certify that the
information. set forth in this report is true, complete and correct This report is signed in the Clty of

Makati on }L..h H g aﬁ 5015

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
By:

e Y
ANNA-TERESA M. GOZON ABROGAR
Corporate Secrez_‘ary
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT

L Business

GMA Holdings, Inc., (the “Company” or “GHI") was incorporated on February 15, 2006. As a
holding Company, its primary purpose is to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire own, hold,
use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, of otherwise dispose of real and
personal property, including, but not limited to stocks, bonds and debentures. “The Company

has no subsidiaries.

The Philippine Deposit Receipts (“PDRs”) issued by the Company were listed with the
Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE") on July 30, 2007.

GHI does not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the
PDRs relating to the GMA Network, Inc. common shares (“Common Shares”) for as long as the
PDRs are outstanding. GHI has undertaken to perform the obligations under the PDRs and the
acquisition and holding of the Common Shares underlying the PDRs, which includes
maintaining the listing with the PSE, and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as
long as Philippine law prohibits ownership of Common Shares by non-Philippine persons. '

The registered‘office address of the Company is Unit 5D Tower One, One McKiniey Place, New
Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.

Transactions with/and or dependence on related parties:

Not applicable.

Employees

The Company had no full-time employees as of March 31, 2013 and does not anticipate in
hiring any employees within the next 12 months. No labor unions are present within the

Company.

. Properties

The Company does not own-any real property. The Company does not lease any real property
and does not infend {o acquire any within the next 12 months.

. l.egal Proceedings

The Company is not, and has not been, a party to any legal proceeding.
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V. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Re_latéd Stockholder Matters

Market Information

The Company first offered PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares on July 30,
2007. These PDRs were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange on the same date.

2014 Stock Prices (GMAP)
Period in 2014 Highest Closing Lowest Closing
1Q 9.00 7.78
2Q 8.00 '7.30
3Q 7.45 6.82
4Q 6.95 599

The Company's Philippine Deposit Receipts have been listed with the Philippine Stock
Exchange since 2007. The price information as of the close of the latest practicable trading

date, May 5, 2015, is P 6.20 for GMAP (PDRs).

Holders

The total humber of shareholders as of June 30, 2015 was seven. The number of shares
subscribed as of June 30, 2015 was 10,000 or P100,000.00. All the common shareholders of

are listed hereunder:

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Subscribed Percentage of Ownership
Felipe L. Gozon 3,330 33.30
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. 3,330 33.30
Josl Marcelo G. Jimenez 3,330 33.30
Artemio V. Panganiban ‘ 4 04
Manuel P. Quiogue 4 ' .04 -
Jaime C. Laya | 1 01
Felipe S. Yalong : 1 .01

Total 10,000 100.00

Dividend' Information

Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be payable
at such times and in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine, either in cash,
shares or property of the Company, or a combination of the three, as said Board of Directors
shall determine. The deciaration of stock dividends, however, is subject to the approval of at
least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capital of the

Company shall be declared.

The company has no dividend declaration in 2013.

22



In 2012, the Company declared F’259 per share cash dividends amounting to P2.59 million to all
stockholders of record as at May 25, 2012. This- was paid on June 8, 2012. ‘

The company has no dividend declaration in 2011.

The Company has not and will not engage in any other busines's or purpose except in relation
to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying Common Shares for as long as the PDRs

are outstanding.

Any cash dividends distributed in respect of Common Shares underlying the PDRs received by
the Company shall be applied towards its operating expenses then due for the preceding and
current year. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be
set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding vear. Amounts remaining in

excess of such requirements shall be distributed pro rata amongst the outstanding PDRs. '

Whanever the Company shall receive or become entitied 10 receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution ‘in respect of the Common Shares which consists of a free distribution of
Common Shares, the Company shall grant additional PDRs to holders in respect of such

distributions.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in securities (other than Common Shares) or in other property (other than cash)

in respect of the Common Shares subject to the PDRS, the Company shall forthwith procure -
delivery of such securities or other property pro rata to PDR holders or otherwise to the order of

the PDR holder, subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the Philippines.

There are no restrictions on the Company’s ability to pay dividends on common equity.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

No sale of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company has ocourred within the past three

years.

V. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements of the
Company that are incorporated info this. Information Statement by reference. Such Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine GAAP.

As discussed in the previous section, the Company has not and will not engage in any other-
business or purpose except in relation 1o the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying
GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares for as long as the PDRs are outstanding.

Any cash dividends or other cash distributions distributed in respect of Common Shares
received by the Company (or the Pledge Trustee on its behaif) shall be applied toward the
operating expenses then due (including but not limited to applicable taxes, fees and
maintenance costs charged by the Philippine Stock. Exchange) of the Company (the “Operating
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Expenses”) for the current and preceding year (as certified by an independent auditor). A
further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year (as certified by an
independent auditor) (the “Operating Fund”) shall be set aside 1o meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding year. Any amount in excess of the aggregate of the Operating
Expenses paid and the Operating Fund for such period (as certified by the independent auditor
of the PDR lIssuer) shall be distributed to Holders pro rata on the first Business Day after such

cash dividends are received by the Company.

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.27 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to p231.53 million to all shareholders of
record as at April 24, 2014, These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014,

On April 24, 2013, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, to all stockholders of record as of April 17,

2013. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 15, 2013.

On August 1, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of PO.26 per
share, in relation o dividends declared by GMA, totaling to P223.87 miilion to all shareholders
of record as at August 22, 2012. These were remitted to PDR holders on September 14, 2012.

On March 28, 2012, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR hoiders of P0.40 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to P344.62 million to all shareholders
of record as at April 16, 2012. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 9, 2012.

On March 11, 2011, the Company approved cash distribution to PDR holders of PO.45 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, fotaling to P387.88 million to all shareholders
of record as at April 8, 2011. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 6, 2011.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company’s key performance indicators are focused on the dividends it 'receives to meet
PDR holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations
with respect to the Company's current and preceding year's operation.

Results of Operations of GMA Holdings Inc. for the years ended December 31, 2014 and

2013

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year with a pre-tax income of P607 thousand, a turnaround from
last year's losses of P139 thousand as a result of higher revenues coupled with lower operating
expenses. Likewise, net income after tax amounted to P350 thousand, an increase of P730
thousand from P380 thousand loss in 2013. This year's revenues reached P1.65 million, an
improvement of 37% or P446 thousand from last year's level of P1.21 million mainly brought
about by the conversion of 0.16 milion PDR shares to common shares versus none in

comparative period.

penses of P1.05M decreased by 22% or P299 thousand from

t of lower professiona! fees and listing fees. Listing fees of
ffshoot of lower market cap.

On the other hand, operating ex
P4.34 million in 2013 on accoun
P690 thousand declined by 14% or P109 thousand as an O
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Professional fees for the services of law firm. trust fees and audit fees went down by 42% to
only P280K as a result of the reduced billing for legal and other corporate housekeeping

services.

On March 30, 2015, the management approved cash dividend declaration of P500 thousand to
stockholders of record as at December 31, 2014. '

Financial Condition. Total assels totaled P48.91 million, a tad higher than last year's P48.29
million due to purchase of TIER Il note, transferring P21.00M cash equivalents to AFS
investment measured at fair value of P21.80 million.

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

i. Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material
impact on the issuers fiquidity.

As of December 31, 2014, there were.no known trends, demands, commitments,
events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

ii. Events that will trigger direct of contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of December 31, 2014, there were no events which may trigger a direct or
contingent financial obligation that is material to the Company.

ii.  Material .off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

iv. Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such
" commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For 2014, there were no material comfnitments for capital expenditures.

V. Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net

sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

The Company’s results of operations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR
holders’ expectations. from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash
equivalents levels to meet its obligations with respect to the Company’s current and
preceding years operation. There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that
are reasonably expected {0 have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net

cales/revenuesfincome from continuing operations.
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vi.  Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s
continuing operations. ' :

As of December 31, 2014, there were no significant elements of income or loss that
did not arise from the issuer’s continuing operations. -

Vil Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statements

Balance Sheet (December 31. 2014 vs. December 31, 2013)

« Cash and cash equivalent decreased byP21 million to only P26.67milli'on as a
result of the purchase of Tier Il note, transferring the cash equivalents to

investments.

s Accounts payéble and accrued expenses declined by 61% to P286 thousand,
due to lower billing for legal fees and other services.

viii. Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations. ' ‘ 4

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition
or results of operations. ‘

INTERIM PERIODS

The Company’s first quarter interim financia! report is attached herewith and is also

available in the Company’s website.

V. Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has established a set of policies and initiatives to ensure that GMA
Holding's business practices are compliant with the best practices in corporate governance.
On March 31, 2011, a Manual on Corporate Governance was submitted to the Securities and
Exchange Commission in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular 6, Series of 2009.

t the principles of good management and- defines the specific

The Manual sets ou “
a

responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committees, and Management within the over-
governance framework. :

The Manual conforms to the requirements of the Philippine Securities and Exchange

Commission and covers policies, among others:

(a) independent directors, (b) key board committees (e.g. Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee, Audit Committee, Compensation and Remuneration Committee); (¢) independent
guditors, (d) internal audit, (e) disclosure system of company's governance policies, (f)
stockholder rights, (9) monitoring and assessment, and (h) penaities for non-compliance.
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On November 6, 2012, the Board designated a Compliance Officer, Atty. Roberto O. Parel, who
al the same time holds fthe designation of Vice-President. The Compliance Officer Is
responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the provisions and requirements of

good corporate governance.

Based on the 2014 Updates of the Annual Corporate Governance Manual which the Company
filed on Company’s Manual filed with the Commission, there have been no deviations from the

Company's Manual as of date.

Vvil. Financial Statements
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'HOLDINGS, INC,

Chief Finang Officer

STATEMENTS OF VIANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Securities and Exchange Commigsion
SEC Building, EDSA Greenhills
Wandaluyong, Metro Manila

A Holdings, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation. of the.
financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, including the additional
compenents attached therein, in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This

responsibility includes designing and implementing internal controls refevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
iate accounting policies, and making accounting estimates that are

The management of GM

* error, selecting ‘and applying approprl

reasonable in the circurmnstances.
The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements and submits the same to the

stockholders,

gyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the board of directors, have . -

examined the financial statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing,
and in its report to the stockholders, has expressed is opinion on the tairness of presentation upon

completion of such examination.

FELJPE L. GOZON
Chairman of the Board
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SEC FORM 17-Q ‘
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 1’}'(2)(b) THEREUNDER

. For the quarterly period ended March 31, 2015

—_

| SEC Identification Number CS200602356

o

3. BIR Tax Identification No. 244-658-896-000

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in jts charter GMA Holdings, Inc.

L

. Philippines
Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation

6.[__ J(SEC Use Only)
Industry Classification Code

7. Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, .
New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio. Taguig Citv 1604
Address of principal office Postal Code

8. (632) 982-7777
lssuer’s telephone number, including area code

9. Not applicable .. ovcerreneeozencenes arbrareres
Former name or former address, if changed since last repoit

10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections & and 12 of the SRC and Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
Title of Each Class ' Number of Shares of Common Stock
' Outstanding and Amount of Debt

Outsianding, .. oopesesspersen

Philippine Depositary Receipts (PDRs) 846,880,000 shares

11. Are any or all of the securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes [v] No []

12. indicate by check mark whether the registrant:

() has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the Code and SRC Rule 17

thereunder or Sections 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule | i(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and

141 of the Corporation Cede of the Philippines, during the preceding twelve (12} months (or
for such shorter period the registrant was required to file such reports)

Yes [v] No []

(b) has been subject to such filing réquirements for the past ninety (90) days.
Yes [v] No []
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR THE THREE MONTHS ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

GMA Holdings, Inc. eaded the first quarter of 2015 with a pre-tax income of B255 thousand, an
* improvement from last year’s pre-tax income of B14 thousand as a resuit of higher revenues coupled with
lower operating expenses. Likewise, net income after tax amounted to 2210 thousand, a reversal from last

year’s losses of P43 thousand.

Revenues reached P313 thousand, an improvement ‘of 79% or $227 thousand from last year’s P286
shousand brought about by higher interest income earned from its ten

_year UnionBank of the Philippines
(UBP) Tier 1l Note purchased last Novemnber 2014, and due to the convers

ion of 1.47 million PDR shares
to cominon shares generating exercise fees of P448 thousand versus none in comparative peried.

Operating expenses went down by 5% to #259 thousand from 2272 thousand in 2014 mainly due to lower
PSE listing fees. Listing fees of 2144 thousand dropped by 17% from R173 thousand last year as an
offshoot of lower market cap. The unexpired portion of listing fee amounting to $432 thousand was
shown under “Prepaid expenses and other current assets” in the statements of financial position.

Professional fees settled at B106 thousand, 35% more than the £79 thousand posted a year 8g0 which
included services of a law firm, trust fees and audit fees. Taxes and licenses representing amortization of
jocal business tax for the quarter amounted to BS thousand versus P11 thousand in 2014 due to lower tax

base.

Financial Condition
Total assets amounted to 248.81 million a tad lower versus end-2014’s P48.91 million primarily due to
the decrease in fair market value of available-for-sale investment, which was estimated using the

discounted cash flow method.

KLY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

sdicators are focused on the dividends it receives to meet PDR

The Company's key performance i1
its obligations with respect 10

halders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to mest
the Company's current and preceding year's pperation,

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

a) Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the

issuer’s liquidity.

As of March 31, 2015, there were no known trends, demands, commiiments, events ar uncertainties
that will have a material impact on the issuer's liquidity.

b) Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the company,

including any default or acceleration or an obligatior.



d)

e)

g)

As of March 31, 2015, there were no events which may trigger a direct or contingent financial
obligation that is material to the Company.

Material off-balance sheet {ransactions, arrangements, obligations (including contingent obli gations),
and other relationships of the comparty with unconsolidated entities or other persons created during

the reporting period.

re no off-balance sheet trangactions, arrangements, obiigations (including gontingent

There we
with unconsolidated entities or other persons

obligations), and other relationships of the company
created during the reporting period. :

Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such commitments and the
expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For the period January 1, 2015 1o March 3%, 2015, thers were no commitments for capital
expenditures. ‘

Any known trends, evenis oF uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably expected to have a
material favorable or unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

The Company's results of operations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR holders' expectaticns
from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations

with respect to the Company’s current and preceding year's operation. There are na known trends,
events or uncertainties that are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable

impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.
Any significant elements of income or loss that did arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

As of March 31, 2015, there were no significant elements of incame or loss that did arise fram the
issuei's continuing operations.

Causes for material changes in the Financial Statements.

Statements of Financial Position (March 31. 2015 ( Unaudited) vs. December 11, 2014 {Auydited))

e Cash and cash equivalents decreased by B378 thousand to £76.29 million as a result of the
transfer of cash placement with URP's available-for-sale Tier 11 Note.

o Current liabilities, oﬁ the other hand increased by p599 thousand to P48.11 millien due to the
cash dividend payable and unpaid liabilities to government agencies.

Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition ar results of operations.

There are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect on ihe financial condition or resulis of

operaiions.



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF FINAN CIAL POSITION

March 31, 2015

December 31, 2014

Unaudited Audited
ASBETS
Current Assets :
Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6 ard 13) $26,287,206 P26,663,221
Accounts receivable (Note 13) 308,834 183,387
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 865,260 304,000
127,461,300 £27,152,608

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assel

Available-for-sale investment (Notes 7 and 14) 3’21,348,593 $21,759,216
748,809,893 48,911,824
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other current liabilities (Notes 8 and 13) £339,878 241,194
Dividends payable (Note 9) 500,000 -
Due to shareholders (Notes 12 and 13) 47,271,600 47,271,600
‘ Total Current Liabilities 748,111,478 P47,512,7%4
Nencorrent Liability
Deferred tax liability (Note 11) 104,578 P227,765
o Total Liabilities P48,216,056 47,740,559
Equity (Note 9) '
Capital stock 100,000 £100,000
Retained earnings . 249,822 530,814
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale investment - net of tax
(Note 7) ‘ ' 244,015 531,451
Total Equity P593,837 P1,171,265
' 748,809,893 P48,911,824

See accompanying Noies t bl inancinl Siatemenis.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For Three Months Ended March 31

2015 2014
REVENUES
Interest income (Notes 6 and 7) P447,899 286,113
Exercise fees (Note 3) 65,402 -
513,301 P2R6,113
OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 10} ~ P258,527 P271,639
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 254,774 £14,474
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 11) |
Current : - -
Final 44,760 57,223
44,700 257,223
_NET INCOME (LOSS) £210,008 (P42,749)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
Item fo be reclassified to profit or Joss in subsequent periods-
Unrealized loss on available- for-sale investment - net of tax
(Note 7) (77287,436) -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (P77,428) (P42,749)
Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share {Note 15) £21.00 (B4.27)

See aeeompanying Notes io inngind Sorements.



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Unrealized Gain on

Capital Refained  Available-for-sale

~Stock Earnings Investment- Net of Total

(Note 8] (Note 9) Tax (Note 7) Lquity

Balances as at January 1, 2018 P100,000 539,814 P531,451 P1,171.265
Net income - P210,008 - £210,008
Other comprehensive 1oss - - (287,436) (287,436)

Total comprehensive incoine {ios3) - 210,008 (P287,436) (P77,428)

Cash dividends - (500,000} - (F500,000)

Balances as at March 31, 2015 P100,000 249,822 P2d4d,(15 P593,837

“Balances as at January 1, 2014 2100,000 P1§9,628 - $289,628

Net loss - (P42,749) - (P42,749)

Other comprehensive income {loss) - - - -
Total comprehensive lass - (P42,749) - (42,749}

Balances as at March 31, 2014 100,000 146,879 - P246,879

See accompanying Notes fo inanelal Statemenis.



GMA HOLDING INC,

"STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Three Months Ended March 31

2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
Income before income tax 7254,774 P14,474
Non-cash adjustments o reconcile income before income tax to net
cash flows- '
Interest incoms (447,899) (286,113)
Working capital adjugtments:
Increases in:
Accounts receivable (73,251) -
Prepaid expenses and other current assels (561,260) (697,448}
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses 98,684 (513,934
Net cash used in operating activities ($728,952) (#1,483,021)
Interest received 395,703 227,897
Final taxes paid (44,760) {57,223)
Net cash used in operating activities (P378,015) (P1,312,347)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (F378,015) (P1,312,347)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE
PERIOD $26,605,221 $47,929,988
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE _
PERICD . ~ 26,287,206 P46,617,641

See accompanying Notes 10 Financial Statements.




GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTES TO UNAUDITED INTERIM FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS

1.

Corporate Information

GMA Holdings, Inc. (the Company) is incorporated in the Philippines to invest in, purchase or
otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange or otherwise
dispose real and perscnal property of every kind and description. The registered office address af the
Company is Unit SD Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City. The Comparny was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (§EC) on

Fehruary 15, 2006,

The accounting and administrative funetions of the Company are undertaken by GMA Network, Inc.

(GMA), an affiliate.

tn 2007, the Company issued Philippine Deposit Receipts {PDRg), which were listed and traded in the
Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) (see Note 3). ‘

The Company will not engage in any business or purpose other than in connection with the issuance
of the PDRs, the performance of the obligations under the PDRs and the acquisition and holding of
the underlying shares of GMA in respect of the PDRs issued. This includes maintaining the
Company’s listing with the PSE and maintaining its status as & Philippine person for as long as the
Philippine law prohibits ownership of GMA's shares by son-Philippine person.

No reportable segment information is presented as the Company’s limited operations are adequately
presented in the statements of comprehensive income.

Basis of Preparation, Statement of Compliance and Changes in Accounting Policies and

Disclosures

Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the Company have been prepared ort a historical cost basis, except for

available-for-sale {AFS) investment which is measured at sair value. The financial statements are
presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency. Amounts

are rounded off to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Statemnent of Compliatce
The Company’s financial statemenis have been prepared in compl

Reparting Standards (PFRS).

jance with Philippine Financial

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, excapt for

the following new, amended and improvements to PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and
Philippine Interpretation from International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)

which the Company adopted during the year:
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8 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, PFRS 12,
and PAS 27, Separate Financial Statements) '
Offsetting Financial Assels and Financial

»  Investment Entities (4mendments to PFR
Disclosure of fnterests in Other Entities,

x  PAS 32, Financial Instrumenis: Presentafion -
Liabilities (Amendments) ‘

= PAS 36, Impairment af dssels - Recoverable Ambunt Disclosures Jfor Non
(Amendments)

s PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measureme)t - Ne
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments)

»  Philippine Interpratation IFRIC 21, Levies
»  Annual improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle (PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement}
»  Annual improvements to PERSs 7011 - 2013 Cycle (PFRS 1, Firsi-time Adoption of PFRS)

Financial Assets

vation of Derivatives and

The adeption of the new, amended and improvements to standards and interpretations did not have

significant impact on the financial statemenss of the Company.

Future Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Company did not early adopt the following new standards, amendments and improvements to

PERS and Philippine Interpretations that have been approved but are not yet effective as at March 31,
20135, The Company does not expect these changes to have a significant impact on its financial

statements unless otherwise indicated.

Standards issued bui not yet effective

(2010 version) - PFRS 9 (2010

» PERS 9, Financial Instruments - Classification and Measurement
ies to the classification and

version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and appl
measurement of financial essets and liabilities ag defined in PAS 39.
PFRS 9 requires all financial assets fo be measured at fair value at initial recognition. A debt
financial asset may, if the fair value option (FVQ) is not invoked, be subsequenily measured at
amortized cost if it is held within a business model that has the objective to hald the assets to
collect the centractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, te cash
flows that are solely payments of prineipal and interest on the principal outstanding. All other
debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair vaiue through profit or loss (FVPL). All
equity financial assets are measured at fair value sither through other comprehensive income
(OCI) or profit or loss. Equity financial assets held for trading must be measured at FVPL. For
FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable to changes
in credit risk must be presented in OCL The remainder of the change in fair value is presented in
profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in respect of the liability’s credit risk in
0OCI would crezte or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. All other PAS 39
classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities have been carried forward
into PFRS 9, including the embedded derivative separation rules and the criteria for using the

FVO.
PFRS 9 (2010 version) is effective for annual periods beginning an or after January 1,2015. The
mandatory adoption date was moved to January 1, 2018 when the final version of PFRS 9 was

adopted by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council {FRSC). Such adoption,
however, is still for approval by the Board of Accountancy (BOA).

11



o

Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 15, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, this
interpretation covers accounting for revenue and associated expenses by entities that undertake
the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The SEC and the FRSC have
deferred the effectivity of this interpretation until the final Revenue standard is issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board and an evaluation of the requirements of the final
Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is completed. The

interpretation is not relevant to the Company.

Effective January 1, 2015

PAS 19, Empioyee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contribufions (Amendments),PAS
19 requires an entity 1o consider contributions from empleyees af third parties when accounting
for defined benefit plans, Where the contributions are linked to service, they should be attributed
to periods of service as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify that, if the amount of the
contributions is independent of the number of years of service, an entity is permitied ta recognize
such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the period in which the service is rendered,
instead of allocating the contributions to the periods of service. This amendment is effective for

annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013.
Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010 - 2012 cycle)

v PFRS 2, Share-based Payment - Definition of Vesting Conditien, this improvement is apptied
prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the definitions of performance and
service conditions which are vesting conditions, including:

a. A performance condition must contain a service condition.

b. A performance target must be met while the counterparty is rendering service.

¢. A perfonmance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those of
another entity in the same group. '

d. A performance condition may be a market or non-market condition.

e. Ifthe counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases to provide service during the vesting

period, the service condition is not setisfied.

n  PFRS 3, Business Combinations - Acecounting for Contingent Consideration i a Business

Combination, the amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for which
the acquisition date is on or after July 1, 2014, It clarifies that a contingent cansideration that

is not classified as equity is subsequently measured at FVPL whether or not it falls within the
scope of PAS 39, (or PFRS 9, if early adopted).

» PFRS 8, Operating Segments - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of the
Total of the Reportable Segmerls * dgsets fo the Entity’s Asseis, the amendments are applied

retrospectively and clarify that:
a. An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the aggregation

criteria in the standard, including a brief description of operating gegments that have been
apgregated and the economic characteristics (e.8- sales and gross margins) used to assess

whether the segments are ‘similar’.

12



u. The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required to be disclosed if the
reconciliation is reported to the chief operating decision maker, similar to the required

disclosure for segment liabilities.

v PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment, and PAS 38, Infangible Assels - Revaluation
Methad - Proportionate Restatement of decunnlated Depreciation and Amortization, the
amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that the asset may
be revalued by reference to the observable data on either the gross or the net carrying amount.
In addition, the accumulated depreciation or amortization is the difference between the gross

and carrying amounts of the asset.

v PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Manageiment Personel, the amendment is apptied
retrospectively and clarifies that & managemet entity, which is an entity that provides key

management personnel services, is a related party subject to t
addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose the expen

for management services.

s dnnual Improvements o PFRSs 12011 - 2013 cycle)

he related party disclosures. In

ses incurred

s PFRS 3, Businéss Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Joint Arrangemeity, the amendment
is applied prospectivefy and clarifies the following regarding the scope exceptions within

PFRS 3:

a. Joint arrangements, niot just joint ventures, are outside the scope of PFRS 3,

b. This scope exception applies only to the accounting in the financial statements of the

joint arrangemertt itself.

s PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Portfolio Exception, the amendment is applied

prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be applied
financial assets and financial liabilities, but also to other contracts within the scop

(or PFRE 9, as applicable).

not anly to
e of PAS 39

»  PAS 40, Investment Property, ihe amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies tiat

PFRS 3, and not the deseription of ancillary services in PAS 40, is used to determ
transaction is a purchase of an asset or business combination.

ine if the

The description of ancillary

services in PAS 40 only differentiates between investment property and owner-occupied

property (i.e., property, plant and equipment).

Effecrive January 1, 2016

»  PAS 16, Property, Plani and Equipment and PAS 38, Intangible Assels - Clarification af
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization {Amendments), the amendments clarify
the principle in PAS 16 =nd PAS 38 that revenue reflects a patiern of economic benefits that are

generated from operating a business (of wi
that are consumed through use of the asset,
to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may
to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are effective prospectively for annyal

beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted.

As aresult, a revenue-based method cann

Jieh the asset is part) rather than the economic benefits

ot be used

only be used in very {imited circumstances

periods
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PAS 16, Property, Plant and Equipment and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Plants (Amendments),
the amendments change the accounting requirements for biological assets that meet the definition

of bearer plants. Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the definition of bearer
AS 16 will apply. After initial

plants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, P
recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at sccumulated cost (before maturity)

and using either the cost model or revaluation mode! (after maturity).

The amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the scope of
PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs to sell. For gavernment grants refated to bearer plants,
PAS 20, Accounting for Government Grants and Disclasure of Government Assistance, will
apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annuel pericds beginning on orafter
January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. This standard is not relevant to the Company.

PAS 27, Separate Financial Statemenis - Fquity Method in Separate Financial Statements
(Amendments), the amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements.
Entities already applying PFRS and electing to change to the equity method in its separate
financial statements will have to apply that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of
PFRS electing to use the equity method in its separate financial statements, they will be required
to apply this method from the date of transition to PFRS. The amendments are effective for
annual pericds beginning on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. The

Standard is not relevant 1o the Company.

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Investmenis in Asspeiates and Joint
Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets behween an Livestor and its Associate or Joind Venture,
these amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements in PFRS 10
and those in PAS 28 (2011} in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require that a full gain or loss is recognized
when 2 transaction involves a business (whether it is housed in a subsidiary or not). A partial
gain or loss is recognized when a transaction involves assets that do not constitute a business,
even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These amendments are effective from annual

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016.

PERS 11, Joint Arrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions af Interests In Joint Operations
(Amendments), the amendments to PFRS 11 require that a joint operator accounting for the
acquisition of an interest in a joint operatian, in which the activity of the joint gperation
constituies a business must apply the relevant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations
accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is not
remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the game joint operation while joint
control is retained. In addition, scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, including the reporting entity,
are under commeon contro! of the same ultimate controlling party. The amendments apply to bath
the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of any additional
interests in the same joint operation and are prospectively effective for annual periods beginning

on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted.

PFRS 14, Regulatory Deferral Accounls, PFRS 14 is an optional standard that aliows an entity,
whose activities are subject 1o rate-regulation, to continue applying most of its existing
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accounting policies for regulatory deferral account batances upon its first-time adoption of PFRS.
Entities that adopt PFRS 14 must present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items
on the statement of financial position and present movements in these account balances as
separate line items in the statement of-profit or loss and other comprehensive income. The
standard requires disclosures on the nature of, and risks associated with, the entity’s rate-
regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its financial statements.

PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016. The standard is

nat relevant to the Company.

Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2012 - 2014 cycle)

s PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes it
Methods of Disposal, the amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing
from a disposal through sale to a disposal through distsibution to owners and vice-versa
should not be considered to be a new plan of disposal, rather il is 8 continuation of the
original plan. There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in
PERS 5. The amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change

the date of classification.

«  PFRS 7, Financiol Instruments! Disclosures - Servicing Contracts, PFRS 7 requires an entity
to provide disciosures for any continuing involvement in a transferred asset that is
derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a servicing contract that includes a
fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial asset. An entity must assess the
nature of the fee and arrangement against the guidance in PFRS 7 in order to assess whether
the disclosures are required. The amendment is 1o be applied such that the assessment of
which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement will need ta be done
retrospectively, However, comparative disclosures are not required to be provided for any
period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the amendments.

s« PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments 1o PERS 7 1o Condensed Interim Financial
Statenients, this amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on
offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities are not required in the condensed interim
financial report unless they provide a significant update to the information reported in the

most recent annual report.

»  DPAS 19, Employee Benefits- Regi onal Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate, this
amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth of high quality corporate
bonds is assessed based on the currency in which the obligation is denominated, rather than
the country where the obligation is located. When there is no deep market for high quality
corporate bonds in that currency, government bond rates must be used.

«  PAS 34, Interim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information 'Elsewhere in the Interim
Financial Report', the amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the required
interim disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements or incorporated by cross-
reference between the interim financial statements and wherever they are included within the
greater interim financial report (e.g., in the management commentary ar risk report).
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Effective January 1, 2018

«  PFRS 9, Financial Instruments - Hedge Accounting and Amendments [0 PFRS 9, PFRS 7 and
PAS 39 (2013 version), PFRS 9 (2013 version) already includes the third phase of the project i0
repiace PAS 39 which pertains io hedge accounting. This version of PFRS 9 replaces the rules-
based hedge accounting model of PAS 39 with a more principles-based approach. Changes .
include replacing the rules-based hedge effectiveness test with an objectives-based test that
focuses on the economic relationship between the hedged itern and the hedging instrument, and
the effect of credit risk on that economic relationship; allowing risk components to be desi gnated
as the hedged iterm, not only for financial items but also for non-financial items, provided that the
risk component is separately identifiable and refiably measurable; and allowing the time value of
an option, the forward element of a forward contract and any foreign currency basis spread to be
excluded from the designation of a derivative instrument as the hedging instrument and accounted
far as cosis of hedging. PFRS 9 also requires more axtensive disclosures for hedge accounting.

PFRS 9 (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effective date of January
1, 2018 was eventually set when the final version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the FRSC. The
adoption of the final version of PFRS 9, however, is still for approval by BOA.

x  PFRS 9, Financial Insfruments (2014 or final version), in July 2014, the final version of PFRS 9,
Financial Insiruments, was issued. PFRS 9 reflects all phases of the financial instruments project
and replaces PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurenment, and all previous
versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new requirements for classification and
measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting, PERS 9 is effective far annual periods
beginning on or afler January 1, 2018, with eatly application permitted. Retrospective application
is required, but comparative information is not compulsory. Early application of previous
versions of PFRS 9 is permitted if the date of initial application is before February 1, 2015,

» IFRS 15, Revenue from Contracis with Customers, IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014 and
establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under TFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goads or services to a
customer. ‘The principles in IFRS 13 provide & more structured approach to measuring and
recagnizing revenue. The new révenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all
current revenue recognition requirements upder IFRS. Either a full or modified retrospective

application is required for annual periods beginning on or afier January 1, 2017 with early

adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of IFRS 15 and plans to

adopt the new standard on the required effective date once adopted locally.

3. Sum:naify of Significant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and in banks,
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with origina
from dates of placement and are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

Cash equivalents are shori-term, highly liquid investments
] maturities of three months ar less
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Determination of Fair Yalue :
Fair value is the price that wouid be received to sell an asset or paid to sransfer a liability in an orderly

transaction between market participants at the measurement date, The fair value measursment is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place

either:

« in the principal market for the asset or liability, or :
= in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

g the assumptions that market participant#

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured usin
at market participants act in their best

would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming th
economic interest,

A fair value measurement of & nonfinancial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the assetin its highest and best use.

priate in the circumstances and for which

The Company uses valuaticn techniques that are appre
imizing the use of relevant observable inpuis

sufficient data are available to measure fair value, max
and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the Company’s financial

statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest

level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable; and ,

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the Towest leve} input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabitities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing

categorization (based on the towest level input that is significant 10 the Tair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting date,
d procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair value

lue disclosures, the Company has determined classes of
acteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the

The Company determines the policies an
measurements. For the purpose of fair va
assets and labilities on the basis of the nature, char

|evel of the fair value hierarchy.

The Company recognizes transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels by reassessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as &
whole) as at the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the transfer.
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Financig! Instruments

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or 8 financial Hability in the
statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and
derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting, Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the market place, ‘

Jnitial Recognitioin and Measurement. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value,
which is the fair value of the consideration given (in case of'an asset) or received (in case of a
Jliability). The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at FVPL,

includes transaction cost.

The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories: financial assets and
financial liebilities at FVPL, joans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS
investments arnd other financial liabilities. The classification depends cn the purpose for which the
instruments are acquired and whether these are quoted in an active market. Management determines

the classification at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this

classification at every reporting date.
The Company has no HTM investments and finaricial liabilities at FVPL as at March 31, 2015 and
December 31, 2014,

Subsequent Measurement. The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Loans anid Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such

financial assets are subsequently measired at amortized cost using the effective interest method

(EIR), less impairment. Amortized cost is caleulated by taking into account any discount or premium
on acquisition and fee or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization as well as
the losses arising from impairment is ‘neluded in the “Interest incorne” account in the statement of
comprehensive income. Loans and recetvables are included in current assets if maturity is within
awelve months from the reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent assets.

The Company's loans and receivables include cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable,

AFS fvesiments. AFS investments are non-derivative financial assets which include equity

‘nvestments and debt securities. Equity investments classified as AFS are those that are neither held
classified as held for trading nor designated at FVPL. Debt securities in this category are those that
are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and that may be sold in response to needs for

liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.

AFS investments are measured at fair value with unrealized gains or losses
ponent of equity unti] the investment is derscognized or until the
investment is determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported
in equity is included in the statement of comprehensive income. Unlisted AFS financial assets, on the
other hand, are carried at cost, net of any impairment until the investment is derecognized. Interest
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carned while holding AFS investments is reported as interest income in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Other Financial Liabilities. This category pertains to financial liabilities that are not held for trading
or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability. These include liabilities arising from
operations or borrowings. Other financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and are
subsequently carried at amoritzed cost, taking into account the impact of applying the EIR method of
amortization {or actretion) for any selated premium, discount and any directly atiributable transaction
costs. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income when the liabilities

are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

The Company’s finaricial liabilities include accounts payable and other current liabilities (excluding
statutory payables) and due to shareholders.

As at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the Company does not have any financial liabilities at
FVPL or derivatives designated as hedging instruments. ’

Classification of Financial Instrumenis Between Liability and Equity
A financial instrument Is classified a5 debt if it provides for a contractual obligation to:

=« deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or
s exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity pnder conditions that are

potentially unfavorable to the Company; or
«  satisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another financial

asset for a fixed number of own equity shares.

If the Company does not have an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial
asset to settie its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of a financial liability.
The components of issued financial instruments that contain both liability and equity elements are
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after
deducting from the instrument as 2 whole the amount separately determined as the fair value of the

liability component on the date of issue,

Derecoanitim of Financial Asgets and Liabilities

Financial Asset. A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group af
similar financial assets) is derecognized wher:

«  the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

» the Company has iransferred its right fo receive cash flows from the asset and gither: (&) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b} has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks anid rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement and hag neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset 18 recognized to the extent of the
Company's continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are meazured on a basis that

reflects the rights and obligations that the Comipany has retained.
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Fiancial Liabilities. A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is

discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same iender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing fiability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as 4 derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new
liwbility, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of

comprehensive income.

Inpairment of Financial Assets .
The Company assesses at each reporting date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is

impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is deemed o be impaired, if and only if,
there is objective evidence of impairment as 4 result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss event) and that Joss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or a group of financial assets that can be reliably
estimated. Objective evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group of
borrowers is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization
and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrzase in the estimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Financial Assets Carried at Amortized Cost. 1 there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
assets carried at amortized cost has been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the

difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future expected credit Josses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial

asset’s original effective interest rate {i.e., the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition).
Thea carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account. The amount of
the loss shall be recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. The financial assets, together
with the associated allowance accounts, are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future

IeCoOVery.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets
that are niot individually significant. IFitis determined that no objective evidence of impairment

exists for an individually assessed financial asse, whether significant or not, the asset isincluded ina

group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is
sollectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are no longer included in a collective

assessment of impairment,

of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease carn be

ng after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment Joss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying value of the asset daes not
exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairmenit loss is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Interest income continues to be accrued on the
reduced carrying amount based on the original effective interest raie of the asset. Loans, together
with the associated allowance, are written +if when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery
and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been transferred to the Company. If a future write-

if, in a subsequent period, the amount
related objectively to an event oceurti
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off is later recovered, the recovery i5 recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment foss is recogpized in the statement of comprehensive income, 10
the extent that the carrying value of the asset does not exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date.

Fingneial Assels Carried af Cost, 1f there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred on an unquoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value because its fair value cannot
be reliably measured, or on derivative asset that is linked to and must be settled by delivery of such an
unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of

return for a similar finanoial asset.

“Day 1 Difference.” Where the transaction price s different from the fair value of other observable
current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valuation technique whose variables
include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference between the
transaction price and fair value of the financial instruments (a “Day 1 difference™) in profit or loss
unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of asset. In cases where data which is not
observable is used, the difference between the transaction price and mode] value is only recognized in
profit or loss when the inputs become observable or when the instrument is derecognized. For each
transaction, the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 1difference”

amount.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments ‘
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements of

financial position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized
amounts and there is an intentjon to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the
linbilities simultaneousty. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements, therefore,
the related assets and liabilities are presented at gross in the statements of financial position.

Equity

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs incurred directly
attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as 2 deduction from proceeds, net of
tax. Proceeds and/or fair vaiue of considerations received in excess of par value are recognized as

additional paid-in capital.

Earnings per share :
PE) amounis are caleulated by dividing net income for the year by the

Basic earnings per share (E
weighted average numnber of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Company has no
basic EPS is the same as diluted EPS,

dilutive potential common shares outstanding, therefore,

Reyenue
Revenue is recognized to the exient that it is probable that the cconomic benefits will flow Lo the

Company and the amount can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made.
Revenue i measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, taking inte aceount
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Company assesses its
revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or agent.
Interest Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest accrues; taking inio account the effective yield

on the assel.
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FExercise Fees. Revenue is recognized upon conversion of PDRs to common shares.

Expenses

Expenses presented as “()perating expenses” account in the statements of comprehensive income are
recognized as incurred. :

Taxes

Current fncome Tax. Current income {ax assets and liabilities for the current period are meastured at
the amount expected to be recavered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax
faws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantially enacted at reporting date.

Current income tax relating to items recognized directly in equity i recognized in equity and not in
profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicabie tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions

where appropriate.

Deferred Income Tex, Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at reporting date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts

for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels are
it is probable that sufficient

recognized for all deductible temporary differences o the extent that 1
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized.

Deferred {ax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of
excess minimum corporate income tax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and net
operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward benefits of excess

MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can he utilized except:

«  where the deferred tax assct relating to the deductible temporary differsnce arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in & transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
fime of the transaction, affects aehther the accounting income nor taxable profit or loss; and

= in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interest in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent
that it is probable that the temporary differences wilt reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
income will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred fax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit

will allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered,



Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply 1o the year
when the asset is realized or the niability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws to be enacted or

substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax
asseis against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the

same taxation authority.

Income tax relating to other comprehensive income is recognized in other comprehengive income
section of the statements of comprehensive income.

Velue-added Tax (VAT). Revenue, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from, or payable 1o, the taxation authority is included as part of
“Prepaid tax and other current assets” or “Accounts payable and other current liabilities” accounts in

the statements of financial position,

Provisions

At L

Provisions are recognized when the Comparty has.a present obligaticn (legal or constructive) where, as
a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of assets embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount ofthe obligation. 1f
{he affect of the time value of money is material, provisions aré determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the Hability. Where discounting is used, the
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognized as interest expense. Whersa the
Company expects a provisicn to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but

only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtually certain,

Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes

t0 financial statements unless the possibitity of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the
notes to financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the

reporting date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events that
hen material.

are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements w

Summary of Significant Aceounting Judgment, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Company to make

estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Future svents may occur which can cause the
estimates used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any changes in estimates will be
recognized in the financial statements as these become reasonably determinable.
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Judgments and estimates ate continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other

factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be determinable under the
circumstances.

Judgments .
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following

judgment, apait from those involving estimates and assumptions, which has the most significant
affect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements. :

Determining Falr Value af AFS Investment. The Company has no intention of selling its AFS
investrent in the near term. It is being held indefinitely and may be sold in response to liquidity
requiremetis or changes in market condition. Accordingly. the Company has classified its Union
Bank of the Philippines Tier 2 Note, or UBP Tier Note, as AFS investment. The Company has no
plans to dispose its AFS investment within 12 months from the end of the reporting date.

The Company carries AFS investment at fair value, Fair value of AFS investment recorded in the
statements of financial position cannot be derived from active markets, hence fair value determination
is deemed based on management’s estimate of smounts that could be realized under current market
conditions, assuming an orderly liquidation over a reasonahle period of time.

The fair value of AFS investment is discussed in Note 14

Estimates and Assumptions ,
The key assumptions concerming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing & material adjustment to the carrying amounis of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below. The Company based its

assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial statements were prepared.

Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to

market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are

reflected in the assumptions when these ocour.

Impairment of AFS Investments. The Company assesses individually at each reporting date whether
there js an objective evidence that an investment based on the same criteriz as financial assets carried
at amortized cost. However, the Company also recognizes an impairment loss, if and only if, itis
probable that the Company will sell the investments and the expected cash flows to be realized from
the disposal of the AFS investments are less than their carrying values.

There were no provisiens for impairment losses as of March 31, 2015 and 2014, The carrying value
of AFS investment as at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 amounted to 821,35 miilion and
R21.76 million, respectively (see MNote 7).

Estimating Realizability of Deferred Tax dsseis. The Company's assessment on the recognition of
deferred tax assets on nondeductible temporary differences and carryforward benefits of NOLCO and
excess MCIT is based on the forecasted taxable income in the subsequent periods. This forecast is

based on the Company’s future gxpectations on revenue and expenses.



The Company did not recognize deferred tax assets as at March 31, 2015 and December 31,2014 as
management believes that sufficient taxable profit will not be available against which the deductible

temporary differences can be utilized.

Philippine Deposit Receipts

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued 822,115,000 PDRs relating to 822,115,000 GMA shares, On
August 21, 2007, additional 123,317,000 PDRs were issued relating to 123,317,000 GMA shares.
Each PDR was issued fora total consideration of £8.50.

Each PDR grants the holders, upon payment of the exercise price and subject o certain other
conditions, the delivery of one GMA share or the sale of and delivery of the proceeds. of such sale of
one GMA share. The Company remains to be the registered owner of the GMA shares covered by the
PDRs. The Company also retains the voting rights over the GMA. shares,

The GMA shares are still subject to ownership restrictions on shares of corporations engaged in mass
media and GMA may reject the transfar of shares to persons other than Philippine nationals. The
PDRs were listed in the PSE on July 30, 2007, and the same may be exercized at any time from gaid
date. Any cash dividends or other cash distributions in respect of GMA shares received by the
Company shall be applied toward the operating expenses of the Company for the current and
preceding years. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be set
aside to megt operating or other expenses for the succeeding years. Any amount in excess of the
aggregate of the operating expenses paid and the operating fund for such period shall be distributed to
PDR holders pro-rata on the first business day after such cash dividends are received by the

Company.

Upon exercise of the PDRs, an exercise price of B0.05 (VAT inclusive) per share shall be paid by the
PDR holders. The exercise price is shown as “Exercise fees” account in the statements of
comprehensive income. Exercise fees amounted to #0.07 million and nil as of March 31, 201 5 and

2014, respectively.

Immediately prior to the closing of the PDR offering and additional issuances described above, GMA,
to which the Company is affiliated, transferred 945,432,000 GMA shares to the Company in relation
to which the PDRs were issued. Foras long as the PDRs are not exercised, the shares underlying the
PDRs will continue to be registered in the name of, and owned by the Company, and all rights
pertaining to these shares, including voting rights, shall be exercised by the Company. The

obligations of the Company to deliver the GMA shares on exercise of the right contained in the PDRs
are secured by the Pledge of Shares in favor of the Pledge Trustee acting on behalf of each holderofa

PDR over the GMA shares.
At any time afier the PDR offering, a shareholder may, &t his option and from time to time, deliver

shares to the Company in exchange for an equal number of PDRs. The exchange is based on
prevailing traded value of GMA shares at the time of iransaction with the corresponding PDR option

price.
As mentioned above, the Company retains the rights io-réceive the cash flows from its invesiment in

GMA and assumes a contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to the PDR holders, net of
operating expenses (a “pass-through” arrangement). The “pass-through” test is met because the .
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Company (a) has no obligation to the PDR holders unless it collects equivalent amounts from its
investment in GMA, (b} is contractually prohibited from selling or pledging its investment in GMA
other than as security to the PDR halders for the obligation to pay the cash fiows, and (¢} has an
obligation to remit any cash flows from the investment in GMA 1o the PDR holders without material

delay.

Under the “pass-through” test, the Company is deemed to have transferred substantially the risks and
rewards of its investment in GMA. Accordingly, the investment in GMA and the liabilities related to
the issuance of the PDRs are not recognized by the Company.

The following are the details and movements of the PDRs and the underlying GMA shares for the

three months ended March 31:

PDRs Number of Shares
: 2015 2014 2015 2014
Balance at beginning '
of year 27,210,932,500 P7,288,833,300 PB48,345,000 $857,509,800
Exercise of PDRs (212,452,500) - (B1,465,000) -
Ralance at end of year P7,198,480,000 R27,288,833,300 £846,880,000 RR57,309,800

On March 30, 20135, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of #0.25 per share, in
relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling 221175 million to all shareholders of record as at
April 24, 2015 and will be paid on May 19, 2015.

h distribution to PDR holders of 0.27 per share, in

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cas
to 2211.53 million to all shareholders of record as at

relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling
April 24, 2014, These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014,

On April 24, 2013, the Company approved a cash distribution ta PDR holders of 80.25 per share, in
relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling to #214.38 million to all shareholders of record as at
April 17,2013, These were remitted to PDR holders on May 15, 2013.

4t to receive cash flows from its investments in GMA but it also assumes
a contraciual obligation to pay those cash flows to the PDR holders which is considered a “pass-
through” arrangement. Thus, the Company did not recognize the dividend income received from
GMA arising from the acquisition and holding of the underlying shares of GMA in its finaneial

statements.

The Company reiains the rig

6. Cash and Cash Equivalents

This consists of:

March 31, 2018 December 31,2014

Cash on hand and in banks 738,226 1,240,820
Short-term placements 25,548,980 25,424 41
726,287,206 £76,665,221
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Cash in banks earn interest at the respective bank deposit
varying periods of up to three months depending on the imme

Company, and earn inferest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

Interest income earned from cash in banks and sho

2286 thousand for the pericd ended March 31, 2015 and 2014,_respectively.

rates. Short-term deposits are made for
diate cash requirements of the

ri-term deposits amounted to 448 thousand and

7. Available-for-sale Tuvestment

in 2014, the Company purchased at par a len-year Unionba
23100 million bearing a fixed interest rate of 5.38%. The ma

20, 2025,

Interest income earned on the UBP Tier 11 Not
ended Mareh 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The movement in AFS investment is as follows:

nk Tier 11 Note with a face value of
turity date of this note is on February

e amounted to B224 thousand and nil for the period

March 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Balance at beginning of year ¥21,759,216 -
Additions #21,000,000
Change in fair value (410,623) 759,216
Ralance at end of year 721,348,593 £21,759,216

The movement of net unrealized gain on AFS invest

ment i5 as follows:

March 31, 2015 ‘December 31, 2014
Balarce at beginning of year P531,451 -
Gain (loss) due to changes i fair market value
of AFS investment (287,436) 759,216
Tax effect of the changes in fair market values (227,763)
Balance at end of year 244,015 £531,451
8. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities
March 31, 2015 December 31, 2014
Accounts payable 79,240 9,240
Accrued expenses ! .
professional and trust fees 271,932 225,910
Others 1,760 1,760
Deferred output VAT 12,132 4,284
VAT payable 44,814 -
P339,878 P241,194
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Accounts peyable and acerued expenses are noninterest-bearin
next financial year. Accrued expenses represent acerued audit fees,

expenses.

Withholding tax payable represents liabilities to the Bursau o

g and are normaily settled within the
retainer fees and miscellaneous

fInternal Revenue (BIR) for the

remittance of final taxes withheld on dividend payments made t0 PDR twiders. These are
noninterest-bearing and are expected to be remitted within 15 days after reporting period.

The components of the cempany’s o
are as follows:

9. Equity
Capital Stock
The Company has 10,000 authorized, subscribed and issued commaon shares with £10.00 par
value per share.
The following summarizes the information on the Company’s registration of securities with the
SEC as required by Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011):
Authorized Number
" Number of lssued lssue/
Date of SEC Approval of Shares Shares Offer Price
July 30, 2007 945,432,000 945,432,000 £§.50
b. Retained Earnings
On March 30, 2015, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash
dividends amounting to 0.30 million o all stockholders of record as at December 31, 2014,
The Company has no dividend declaration in 2014,
i0. Operating Expenses

perating expenses for the peried ended March 31, 2015 and 2014

2013 2014

Listing fees P144,011 172,574
Professional fees - 106,023 78,750
Taxes and licenses 5,095 10,697
Transportation 393 -
PDR conversion expenses 651 -
Iviscellangous 2,354 9,618
P258,527 £271,639
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il

Income Taxes

This account consists of final tax on interest income from bank deposits of 45 thousand and B57
thousand for the period ended March 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. -

to B105 thousand and B228 thousand as at March 31,'2015 aﬁd

Deferred tax liability amounted
§ investment presented under

December 31, 2014, respectively. This pertains to unrealized gain on AF
equity in the statements of financial position.

. Related Party Disclosures

parties are considered to be related If one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control,

Terms and Conditions of Transaciions with Related Pariies
Transactions with related parties have been entered into at terms no less favorable than could have

been abtained if the transactions were entered into with unrelated parties, In 1* quarter of 201 5, no
transactions have been entered into by the Company with its related parties.

1 Afmount/Volune Dueto Shareholders Terms Conditions

- Caolegory Quarter _of Transactions

Sharehglders

Portion of proceeds retained 2015 P
from issuance of PDRs 2014 -

p47,271,600  Upon demand, non- Unsecured,
47,271,600 intercsl bearing  settied in cash

The outstanding balances of “Due fo Qhareholders” pertain to the option price amounting to BOOS
(VAT inclusive) per PDR which was fetained by the Compary, as the PDR issuer, in consideration
for the rights granted wnder the PDRs. This amount will be used for the liguidation of expenses
related to the issuance of the PDRs. Any excess is to be remitted to the seliing ghareholders.

The Company’s key management personnel are emplnyed by GMA and 1o part of their galaries was

aliocated to the Company.

13.

Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principel financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents. The main
purposes of these finaneial instruments include raising financing for the Company’s operations and
managing identified financial risks. The Company has other financial assets and liabilities such as
accounts receivable, accounts payable and other current liabilities (excluding statutory payables) and
due to shareholders, which arise directly from its operations._Liquidity risk, interest rate risk, fair
value interest rate risk and eredit risk are the main risks arising from the Company’s financial

instruments.

The BOD reviews and approves the Company’s objectives and palicies.



Liquidity Risk. The Company is exposed to the possibi
environment and/or its operations would result in substantially high
and gubsequently pose difficulty in financing the sdditional working capital.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by using its.cash
meet its short-term liguidity needs. The Company likewi
instruments and arrangements to broaden the Comgpany’s range of financing sources.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s finan

risk management purposes and financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted pay

March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

lity that adverse changes in the business
er working capital requirements

and cash equivalents from operations to
se regularly evaluates other financing

cial assets used for liquidity

ments as at

Mareh 31, 2013
: More than
On Demand 3 to 12 Months 1 year Total

Financial Assels o
Cash and cash equivalents £26,287,200 - - P26,287,200
AFS investment ' - - P21,348.593 21,348,593

726,287,206 T P21,348,593  P47,635,799
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and other

current liabilities* P327,746 - - P327,746

Dividends payable 500,000 - - 500,000
Due to shareholders 47,271,600 - - P47,271,600

48,000,346 - - 748,099,346
*Excluding deferred output VAT amounting to P12,132 as at March 31, 2015,

December 31, 2014
Mora than 1
On Demand 3 to 12 Months year Total

Financial Assets _
Cash and cash equivalents 26,665,221 - - P26,665,221
AFS investmeni - . P21,759,216 21,759,216

$26,665,221 . P21,759,.216 P48424,437
Financial Linbilities
Accounts payable and other
current habilities* £236,910 - - P236,910
Due to shareholders 47,271,600 - - 47,271,600

P47,508,510 - . P47,508,510

1, 2014,

* Eycluding deferred output VAT amounting fo P4,284 as at December 3
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Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk fhat the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure (o
changes in interest rates is minimal and is attributed to cash and cash equivalents.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a.reasonably possible chiange in interest rates, with
all other variables held constant, of the Company’s income before income tax from reporting period
up to next reporting period. There is no impact on the Company’s equity other than those already

affecting profit or loss:

Increase Effect on lncame Before Income
(Decrease) in Besis Tax
, Points 1Q 2015 1Q—2014
Cash and cash equivalents 50 ri131,411 $233,063
50 (P131,411) (P233,063)

Fuir Value Interest Rate Risk. The Company follows a prudent policy on managing its assets and
liabilities to ensure that exposure {0 fluctuations in interest rates are kept within acceptable limits.
There are no floating rate financial assets and financial Habilities. Term deposits with banks and debt

securities carry fixed rates througheut the period of deposit or placement.

The Company’s AFS investment earns fixed interest rate at 5.38% in 2015 and 2014, Fixed interest

rate instrument exposes the Company to fair value interest rate risk, such as the fair value will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. In order fo manage its interest rate risk, the Company
places its excess funds in high yield investments and other short-term deposits.

of fair value changes due to possible change in

The following table below demonstrates the sensitivity 7
period with all ather variables held constant.

interest rates from reporting period up to next reporting

Increase
(Decrease) in Effect on Equity
Basis Poinis 2014
AFS investment 50 (B304,227)
{50) 843,111

Credif Risk. Credit risk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of
credit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. It is the Company’s policy to enter into
wransactions with a diversity of creditworthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of credit
risk. The Company ensures shat services are made to customers with appropriate credit history. The
Company has an internal mechanism 1o monitor the granting of credit and management of credit
exposures, The Company

has made provisions, where necessary, for potential losses on credits
extended. The Company’s eXposure 1o credit risk arises from default of the counterparty with a
maxinum exposure equal to the carrying amount of the instruments, The Company does not require
any collatera! for its financial assets. ‘

The credit quality of financial assets is managed by the Company using high grade and standard grade

as internal credit ratings.
21



not expected by the Company 10 default in settling its

High Grade. Pertains toa counterparty who is
prime financial

obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. Thig normally includes large
institutions and related parties. ,

Standard Grade. Qther financial assets not classified as high grade are included in this category.

The Company classified its cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand) and accounts
receivable as high grade financial assets ag at March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

As ai March 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014, the aging analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

Maroh 31,2015 December 31,2014

Neither past due nor impaired 195,604 143,407

Past due but not impaired:

31-60 days | 13,250 ' 30,600

61-150 days 94,980 0,380

151-365 days - -
P308,834 P£183,387

Capital Management

of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong

The primary objective
ts business and maximize shareholder

credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to suppart i
value, :

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes in

economic conditions, To maintain or adjust the capital struciure, the Company may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, payoff existing debts, return capital to shareholders or issue new

shares.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for the three months ended March 31,

2013,

is undertaken hy GMA. The Company’s capital inciudes the

The Company’s capital management
ted to 20.59 million and 21.17 million as at March 31, 2015

total stockholders’ equity, which amoun
and December 31, 2014, respectively.

_ Financial Assets and Liahilities

Fair Value Determination
The following methods and as
for which it is practicable to estimaie such value:

sumptions are used to estimate the fair value of each asset and liability
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Cnsh and Cash Eguivalents. Accounts Receivable, Acoounts Pavable and Other Current Lighilities

(excluding Statutory Pavables). Dividends pavable and Due {0 Shareholders
The carrying amounts approximate the fair values Jue to the short-term maturities of these financial

instruiments.

AFS invesiment
Unguoted AFS investment is carried at fair vaiue based on observable market data, which is estimated

using the discounted cash flow methodology. Discount rates used range from 2,38% to 4.19% and
9 38% to 3.90% as at March 31, 1015 and December 31, 2014, respectively. The fair value is under

level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

15.

Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share Computation

Basic/diluted EPS is computed as follows:

March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

Net income (loss) atiributable to equity holders (a) 210,008 (P42,749)
Common shares issues at beginning and end of year (b) 10,000 - 10,000
Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share {a/b) 11.00 (P4.27)
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OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Company has no other |
Form 17-C, if any.

nformation that needs to be disclosed other than disclosures made under

SEC
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SIGNATURLS

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Regulation Code, the issuer has duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized. ‘

1ssuer: GMA HOLDINGS,; INC.

By:

~FRTIPTS. YALO
Chief Operating Offier/Chiel nancial Officer

A Mo

RONALRQ P. MASTRILI
Comptroller/Chief Accounting Officer
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CERTIFICATION

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that in compliance with Article 9(B) of
the 1987 Philippine Constitution, none of the Directors,
Independent Directors and Officers of GMA Holdings, Inc. are
clected as public servants and or appointed in any government
agency, local or foreign, without authority of law.

Tssued this 0™ day of }uly 2015.

anasanne gl

ROBERTO O. PAREL
Compliance Officer
GMA Holdings, Inc.



| JAIME C. LAYA, Filipino, of logal age, an

Midland Mansionl
duly sworn 1o in accordance with faw, do hereby

1.

2,

CERTIFICATION OF [NDEPENDENT DIRECTORS &

d with office address atSu&teﬁ;iO.’i

Condontinium A. Arnaiz Avenue, Makatt City, after having been

declare that:

I am an Independent Director of GMA Holdings, Ing.3

[ am affiliated with the following companies Or organizations: -

‘__‘___.w-—rﬂw—'-—“
— Company/Organization pPeriod of |
) L Service

|

2004-present

Chairman and
President

Philippine AXA Life {nsurance Co., 1ne. W 2005-present
: Independent

GMA Network, Inc. _ 2007-present
-] Director

Philippine Trust Cdmpany {Philirust Bank)

. TGMA Holdings, Ine. 2007-present
| Director )
Ayala Lend, Ine. . Independent 2010-present
‘ Director .
Manila Water Compaiy, Ine. Independent 2014-present
Director
[

Esc%@_@_@%@_ﬂ%% 2013-present

Don Norberto T Foundation, [no. Chairman 2005-preseit

Cofradia de la Tnmaculada Conce olén Trusice 1979-present
Hearl Foundation of the Philippines, Inc. Trustes on. 1983-present

C1B} Foundation 1ne, Trusiee 1998-present

St Paul University — Quezon Cit; _ | Trustee 2002-present

TFundacion Santiafo, ng. ~ - | Trustee 2002-present

Trustee 2003-present

Cultural Center of the Philippines
Metropolitan Museutt of Manila

YVuchengeo Museum ‘
Soclety for Cuitaral Earichment,
Avaia Foundation, Inc.
Manila Palo Club

Trustee ca. 2004-present

Trustee

Direciot
sera Society Foun W
arious famil corperatons ‘ ca. 1960-pregent

ions and none of the disqualifications to serve &s an
Inc., 85 provided for in Section 38 of
and Regulations.

dation, Inc.

| possess all the qualificat
Independent Director of GMA Holdings,
the Securities Regulation Code and its Tmplementing Rules



Done this 15"

Qeries of 20135,

R

4, { shall faithfully and diligently comply with my-duties and responsibilities as
Independent Director under the gecurities Regulation Code.

5.  shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA Holdings, ine. of any changes

in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence.

day of April two thousand and fifteen at Quezon City.

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this 15" day of April two thousand and

fifteen, at Quezon City, affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his
Passport No. EC3123777 issued at Manila on January 7, 2015.

Doc. No. - heA N A e ;
o o | . MARIA THERRSAE. DE MESa
P Appointusnt No, M-528 -
e, No_tr-sr}j Public fiw hakatl City
tf Vil 1 wber 31, 2015
o, 47224

PTR No, 4754934/ Jan. 0, 2 i
e e, B, 2015/ akati Clty
Liftte 152 . 093171051, 20 Ml TV
v ig,f‘lc":‘f s, Sagirtaring Condominiu
V. deta Couta Sixest, Saloedo Village
Mk City




Acacia Strest, Dasmal
accordance with law, do

1.

2.

CERTiFICATlQN OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

I ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN, Filipino, of legal age and a r§sicafit 871 g3
inas Vilage: Makati City, after havin NG in
hereby declare that. . ‘

| am an Independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC.;

ations.

ated with the fofiowing listed companies of organiz

| am affill
—«:—‘-*’—.——--—‘-"“"T - - e
‘ Gompanlergamzations Positlon/ T Period of Service
Realationship . :
inde endeﬁt.Dlrector 2007 - prasent

,_.'___._,,__.,-—-u——'—"""
First Philipping Holdings Corgorat’ion ‘
Indeendent Director 2007 - Qresent

“Meto Pacific investments Corporation
Indeendent Directar 2006 - ,gfesent

WManila Electric Company__ _ 0
Robinsons Land Corporation____ .| independent Director 2608 - present
GMA Network, inc. - lndegendengp_irector T 2007 - gresent
Petron Corporation__ independent Director 5010 - present

Bank of Philpping Islands independent Director 2040 - present
Aetan rerminals inc, Indapendent Director 5010 - present
Philippine LONY D';gdtggg_ejel‘ co. independent Diractor 5013 - present
Jollibee Foods Corperation ' Non-Executive Bivector | 2012 - sresent
Netropolitan Bank ana 1rust CO. T Senior Adviser 2007 - present
ties Corp. Advisel . 0014 - present

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN 1o before me this

affiant

Double Dragon Proper
(For my ful bio-data, log to my Per
(Formy B

none of the disqualifications 0 serve as an
as provided for in Section 38 of

s and Regutations.

sonal webslte: cjpanganiban.com)

A posséss all the qualifications and
Independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, ING.,
the Securities Regulation Code and its impiemenﬂng Rule

| shall saithfully and ditigently comply with my duties and respohéibiiitles as
independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code. :

gretary of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., of any changes

| ghalt inform the Corporate S¢
from its oceUITence.

in the abomﬁﬁwe{ltlg%gjformation within five (5) days

Done this day of Aprit 2018 at Makati City.

" ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN -
Affiant '
APR 1

5dé23g 10@ April 2015 at Makati City,

personaily appeared pefore mMe and oxhibited to me his Passport Numbe!
2014 by the DFA, Manila and will expire 0

£C2160733 issued on September 22

september 21, 2019. WW N

927 ‘ WIARIA THERESA K. OE MESA

Dac, NO. - Appointnent o, M-528

page No. Zh Nt{.&r_&;} i%mlic for Mokati CHY A

Book No. ‘ Tutit & f.x:‘tu..:zbcsr 31, 2813 y

series of 2Dj’157 ‘ Roli Mo. 47224 A

: . _PTE o, ATS4NEN Tan g, 2015{Makati Clty

Lifetime JEP Ma. 09348/0ct 1,201 0/Masiia v

15 & 16 Foors, B8 gitarius Condominiun
HLV, dela Costa Strest Saloede Village
Makati City
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GOVER SHEET
- for
AUDITED FINANC(TAL STATEMENTS

FS FOR FILING WITH SEc
FILING WITH St_;_nm ‘ SEC Registration Number

AFTER THE BIR Bas DuLy
STAMNPED "RECENEN"

[cls]z]olols 0lz]s]5]¢]

Company Name

aiMial JHIO|L|DITIN|G|{S],| |[I|N/C .

, - Principal Office (No,fStreet/Baranganyity/Townivaince)
5{D Tio|w|e[r Olnlel, Olnje] |Mjie|K i|njijey¥ Pll]a

ciel, Nle w Gllieib|a|l Blotn|i|f|ajelio Clittly],

Flo|r|t Blolniilf|lajeiije], Tlalglu|ilg Clit|y
Formn Typa Depariment requiring the report ', Secondary Licanse Typs, If Appiicabla
AlAIF S8 - Neot Applieable
COMPANY INFORMATION
Cormpany's Emed Address Cumpany's Telephone Numbars Mabile Number
982-7777 -
Annyal Mesting Flacal Year
No. of Stockholdars Month!Day Konth/Day

7 : ' 5730 12/31

CONTACT PERSON INFCRMATION

'The deslgnated contaot person MUST be an Officar of the Comaraticn

Name of Contact Person Emall Address Telephone Nu_mben’s Wobile Mumber

Mr. Ronalde P. Mastrili rpmastrili@gma networl.com 982.7777 . -

Contact Person's Address

GMA Network Center, Timog Avenue corner EDSA, Quezon City

Hote: In case of death, resignation or cessafion ol ffice ofthe officer dasignated as contact persan, such incident shail bs yeported to tha Commigsion
within thirty (30} calendar days fram tha ocourrence thersat with Infarmation and ¢omplete contact details of tha new cantact person designated.
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Navember 15, 2012, valid until November 16, 2018

: Building a better Philipgines R
weorking work ’

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

U s L OF DU RN AL REVENUE
LAaRGE A
| LARGE TAxaves = IVISION
The Stockholders and the Board of Directors : o
GMA Holdings, Inc, . ate
5D Tower One, One McKinley Place ] i
New Gio}aaliBonifaci'o‘ Cll’}’ R e B E T%;“ o
Fort Benifacio, Taguig City _ _
) VARIVIC O GO TAGA k

Report on the Fiuancial Statements

We have audited.the accompanying financial statements of GMA Holdings, Inc., which comprise the
statements of financial position as af December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the statements of
comprehensive income, stafements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the

- three years in the period ended December 31, 2014, and a suminary of significant accounting policies

and other explanatory information.
Management's Responsibility for the Financial Siatements

Management is responsible for {he preparation and fair presentation of these financial statetnents in
acoordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or errar. :

Auditors' Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits, We
conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan end perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from materiaf misstatement.

to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures

s selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the

uf of the financia) statements; whether due to fraud or
ditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s

| statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinton cn the effectiveness .
of the entity’s internal control, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentaticn of the financial statements.

An audit involves performing procedures
i the financial statements. The procedur
assessment of the risks of material misstateme
error. In making those risk assessments, the an
preparation and fair presentation of the financia

We believe that the audii evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our audit opinion.

| ROV
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Decentber .31\ 5./

2014 2013
f
ASSETS /
Current Assets
. Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 6 and 13 P16,665,221 Bd47,929 988
Accounts receivable (Note 13) 183,387 153,310
Prepaid tax and other current assets 304,000 207,488
Taotal Current Assets 27,152,608 43,290,786
Noncurrani Asset
Available-for-sale investment (Notes 7 and 14) 21,759,216 -
#48,911,824 B48,290,786
LIABILYTIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable and other currm‘c Hahilities (Notes 8 and 13) 241,194 H729,558
Due to shareholders (Notes 12 and 13) 47,271,600 47.271,600
Total Current Liabilities 47,512,794 48,001,158
Noncurrent Liability .
Deferred tax Hability (Note 11) - 227,765 -
Total Liabilities 47,740,559 48,001,158
Equity (Note 9)
Capital stock 100,000 100,000
Retained eammgs 539 814 189,628
Unrealized gain on avaﬂablwfor‘sale investment - nst of tax <
(Note 7) 531,451 -
Total Equity: 1,171,265 289,628
®48,911,824  P48,290,786

See aceompanying Notes to Fingnsial Statements.
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Building a better
worlking world

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairty, in ail material fespe.éts, the financial position
of GMA Holdings, Inc. as af December 31,2014 and 2013, and its finaneial performance and its cash
flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2014 in accordance with Philippine

Finzncial Reporiing Standards.

Report on the Supplementary Informatiou Required Under Revenue Regulations No. 15-2010
Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the bagic finencial statements
taken as a whole. The supplementary information required under Revenue Reguiations No. 15-2610
in Note 16 to the financial statements is presented for purposes of filing with the Bureau of Internal
Revenue and is not a required part of the basic financial swatements. Such information is the
responsibility of the management of GMA Holdings, Inc. The information bas been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in our sudit of the basic financial statements. In our opinion, the
information is fairly stated, in ali matertal respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken

as whale.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYC & CO.

Marydif/C. Miguel

Partner . BU !R t’lf“x ¢ OF INTYRNAL RE
CPA Certificate No. 65556 Lapehn LA PAT KRS
SEC Acereditation No. 0087-AR-3 (Group A), _ Al A
January 18, 2013, valid until January 17,2016 Date
Tax Identification No. 102-092-270
BIR Acoreditation No. 08-001998-35-2015, : _
February 27, 2018, valid until February 26,2018 R EOE
PTR No. 4751303, January $, 2015, Makati City A RIVIE e s
March 30, 20135

A
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GMA HOLE)XNGS INC,
STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE iN COME

Years Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
REVENUE
Interest income (Notes 6 and 7) 71,242,815 B1,205,493 B],686,795
Exercise fees (Note §) 409,143 ~ -222,560

1,651,958 1,205,493 1,969,355

QPERATING EXPENSES (Note 10) 1,045,026 1,344,184 1,097,954

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX 606,932 {138,691) 811,401
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 11) , .
Current 256,746 241,099 341,963
Deferred , - - 456,299
256,746 - 241,090 798,262
NET INCOME (1L.OSS) . 350,186 (379,790) 13,139
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Item to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods
Unrealized gain on available-for-sale :
investment - net of tax (Note 7) 531,451 - —
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) £381,637 (8379,790) - R13,138
Basic/Diluted Earnings (Loss) Per Share (Note 15) #3502 (R37.98) B3I

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




GMA H()&BIN&S ING,
STATEMEN’TS OF CHAN GES IN EQUYEY

Unrealized Guio on

Capital Retained Availabie-fer-sale
Stoek Earnings Investment ~ Net of Total
(Notc 9} (Note 9) Tax (Note 7} Faquity
Balances as at January 1, 2014 REOC.200 P189,628 B - B189,628
Net income - 350,156 - 350,186
Other comprehensive income - - 531,451 531,451
Tatal comprabensive income - 350,186 531,451 881,637
Balances as at December 31, 2014 . E100.000 £339,814 8331481 #1,17L.205
Balances as at January 1, 2013 - B100,000 P569,413 B P6G9,418
Total comprehensive loss = {379,7901 - (379,7507
Balances as ¢t December 31, 2013 £100,000 P185.625 P P239.628
Batances as at January 1, 2012 £#100,000 B3,150,276 P P3250,276
Total comprehensive income . 13,139 - 13,139
Cash dividends - B259 a share ) - (2,593.967) — (2,593.997)
Balances a5 at December 31, 2012 . B1HG,000 B569,418 o £665,418

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC,

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

_Years Ended Decemier 31

2014 2013 2012

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES . . :
Income (loss) before income tax B606,932 (B138,691) B211,401
Adjustment for interest income {Notes 6 and 7) (1,242,515) (1.205,493) (1,686,795}
Operating loss before working capital changes (635,883) (1,344,184) {875,394)
Decrease (increase) in: ‘

Accounts receivable 40,650 142,730 {96,500)

Prepaid tax and other current assets (96,512} - (98,382) (65,843)
Increase {decrease) in accounts payable and other '

current Habilities {488,364) 246,485 242,041
Cash flows used in operations  (1,180,109) {1,053,351) (795,756)
Interest received 1,172,087 1,162,885 1,734,262
Income taxes paid (256,745) {241,099} (341,963}
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities {264,767) (131,565) 596,543
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITY
Payment of available-for-sale investment (Note 7) {21,000,000) - -
Payment of cash dividends {Note 9) _ - — (2,593,997
Net cash used in financing activities {21,000,000) - (2,593,997)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH :

EQUIVALENTS {21,264,767) (131,565)  (1,997,454)
CASHE AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 47,919,988 48,061,553 50,059,007

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR (Note 6)

276665221  P47,920988 48061553

See accompanying Notes to Fingnolal Siatements.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information

GMA Holdings, Inc, (the Company) is incorporated in the Philippines to invest in, purchase or
otherwise acquire and own, hold, use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, piedge, exchange or
otherwise dispose real and personal property of every kind and deseription. The registered office
address of the Company is 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Global Bonifacio City, Fort
Bonifacie, Taguig City. The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange
Commission {SEC) on February 15, 2006,

The accounting and administrative functions of the Company are undertaken by GMA Network,
Inc. (GWA), an affiliate.

in 2007, the Company issued Philippine Deposit Receipts (PDRs), which were listed and traded in
the Philippine Stock Exchange (PSE) (see Note 5).

The Company will not engage in any busitiess or purpose other than in connection with the
issuance of the PDRs, the performance of the obligations under the PDRs and the acquisition and
holding of the undertying shares of GMA in respect of the PDRs issued. This includes
maintaining the Company’s listing with the PSE and maintaining its status as a Philippine person
for as long as the Philippine law prohibits ownership of GMA’s shares by non-Philippine person.

No reportable segment information is presented as the Company’s limited operations are ‘
adequately presented in the statements of comprehensive income.

The accompanying financial statements of the Company were approved and authorized for
issuance it accordance with 2 resolution of the Board of Dirgctors (BOD) on March 30, 2015,

2. Basis of Preparation, Stafement of Compliance and Changes in Aecnuntiug Policies and
Disclosures

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
available-for-sale (AFS) investment which is measured at fair value. The financial statements are
presented in Philippine peso, which is the Company’s functionat and presentation currency.
Amounts are rounded off to the nearest peso, except when otherwise indicated.

Statement of Compliance _ o .
The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in compliance with Philippine Finéncial

Reporting Standards (PERS).

Il
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- Chanpes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for

the following new, amended and improvements to PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
and Philippine Interpretation from International Financiai Reporting Interpretations Commities
(IFRIC) which the Company adopted during the year:

v Investment Entities (4mendments to PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements, FFRS 12,
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, and PAS 27, Separafe Financial Statements)
v  PAS 32, Financial Instruments. Preseniation - Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial

Ligbilities (Amendments)
®  PAS 36, Inpairment of dssets - Recoverable Amount Disclosures Jor Non-Financial Assets

{ Amendments)
s PAS 39, Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of Derivatives and
Continuation of Hedge Accounting (Amendments)

s Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 21, Levies
= . Anpual improvements to PFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle (PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement)
+  Annual improvements to PFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle (PFRS 1, First-time Adoption of PFRS)

The adoption of the new, amended and improvements to standards and interpretations did not have
significant impact on the financial statements of the Company.

Future tChanges in Accounting Policies and Drzclosures .
‘The Company did not early adopt the following new standards, amendments and improvements to

. PFRS and Philippine Interpretations that have been approved but are not yot effective as at
December 31, 2014, The Company does not expect these changes to have a significant impact on
its financial statements unless otherwise indicated.

Standards issued but not yet effective

¢ PFRS 9, Financidl Instruments - Classification and Measurement (2010 version) - PFRS 9
(2010 version) reflects the first phase on the replacement of PAS 39 and appiies to the
classification and mesasnrement of financial assets and Habilities as defined in PAS 39,

PFRES 9 requires all financial assets to be measured at fair value at initial recognition. A debt
financial asset may, if the fair value option (FV O} is not invoked, be subsequently measured at
amortized cost if it is held within a business model that has the objeciive to hold the asseis to
collect the contractual cash flows and its contractual terms give rise, on specified dates, to
cash fiows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal cutstanding. All
other debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL),
All equity financial assets are measured at fair value either through other comprehensive
incorme (QCI) or profit or loss, Bquify financial assets held for trading must be measured at
FVFL. For FVO liabilities, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that s
attributable to changes in credit risk must be presented in OCL The remainder of the change
in fair value is presenied in profit or loss, uniess presentation of the fair value change in
respect of the Liability’s credit risk in OCT would create or enlarge an acceunting mismateh in
profit or loss, All other PAS 39 classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities have been carried foiward into PFRS 9, inciuding the embedded derivative

separation rules and the criteria for using the FVOQ.

PFRS 9 (2010 version) is effective for annual periods beginning on or affer January 1,2015.
The mandatory adoption date was moved 1o January 1, 2018 when the fina] version of PFRE 9
was adopted by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC). Such
adoption, however, is still for approval by the Board of Accountancy {(BOA).

AT
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e Philippine Interpretation IFRIC 13, Agreements for the Construction of Real Estare, this
interpretation vovers accounting for revenue and associated expensés by entities that
undertake the construction of real estate directly or through subcontractors. The SEC and the
FRSC have deferred the effectivity of this interprstation until the final Revenue standard is
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and an evaluation of the requirements
of the final Revenue standard against the practices of the Philippine real estate industry is
completed. The interpretation is not relevant to the Company.

Bﬁectiveljanuary 1,285

s PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Defined Benefit Plans. Employee Contributions (Amendments),
PAS 19 requires an entity to consider contributions from employees or third parties when
accounting for defined benefit plans. Where the contributions are linked to service, they
should be atiributed to periods of service as a negative benefit. These amendments clarify
that, if the amount of the contributions is independent of the number of vears of serviee, an
entity is permitted to recognize such contributions as a reduction in the service cost in the
period in which the service is rendered, instoad of aliocating the contributions to the periods of
service. This amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
January 1, 2015, '

i

o« Annual Improvements to PFRSs (2010 - 2012 cycle)

s PFRS 2, Share-based Paymemt - Definition of Vesting Condition, this improvement is
applied prospectively and clarifies various issues relating to the definitions of performance
and service conditions which are vesting conditions, ineluding:

a. A performance conditfon must coniain 2 service condition,

b. A performance target must be met while the counterparty fs rendering service.

¢. A performance target may relate to the operations or activities of an entity, or to those
of another entity in the same group. ' : “

d. A performance condition may be & market or non-market condition.

e. Ifthe counterparty, regardless of the reason, ceases ¢ provide service during the
vesting period, the service condition is not satisfied,

s PERS 3, Business Combinations - Accounting for Coniingent Consideration in g Business
Combination, the amendment is applied prospectively for business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after July 1, 2014, It clarifies that a contingent
econsideration that is not classified as equity is subsequently measured at FVPL whether or
not it falls within the scope of PAS 39, (or PFRS 7, if early adopted).

= PFRS 8, Operaring Segnfwmts - Aggregation of Operating Segments and Reconciliation of
the Total of the Repovtable Segmenis” Assels 10 the Entity’s Asseis, the amendments are

applied retrospectively and clarify that:

a. An entity must disclose the judgments made by management in applying the .
aggregation criteria in the standard, inciuding a brief description of operating segments
that have been aggregated and the econoniic charaoteristics (e.g., sales and gross

marging) used to assess whether the segments are ‘similar’.
b. The reconciliation of segment assets to total assets is only required 1o be disclosed if
the reconciliation is reported to the chief operatng decigion-maker, similar to the

required disclosure for segment liabilities.
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v PAS 16, Property, Plont and Equipment, and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Revaluation
Method - Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization, the
amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies in PAS 16 and PAS 3§ that the asset
may be revalued by reference to the observable data on either the gross or the net carrving
amount. Ir addition, the accumuleted depreciation or amortization is the difference
between the gross and carrying amounts of the assst.

e PAS 24, Related Party Disclosures - Key Management Personnel, the amendment is
applied retrospectively and clarifies that a management eutity, which is an entity that
provides key management persormel services, is a related party subject o the related party
disclosures. In addition, an entity that uses a management entity is required to disclose the

expenses incurred for management services.
e Admnual Improvements to PFRSs (2011 - 2013 cycle)

= PFRS 3, Business Combinations - S‘cope Exceptions for Joint Arrangements, the
amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies the following regarding the scepe
exceptions within PFRS 3:

a. Jointarrangements, not just joint ventures, are outside the scope of PFRS 3.
b. This scope exception applics only to the accounting in the financial statements of the

joint arrangement itself. .

’

‘»  PFRS 13, Fair Value Measurement - Porifolio Excepﬁbﬁf‘t}ie amendment is appled
prospectively and clarifies that the portfolio exception in PFRS 13 can be applied not only
to financial assets and financial Habilities, but also to other contracts within the scope of

PAS 39 (or PFRS 9, a5 applicable),

s PAS 40, fnvestment Property, the amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that
PERS 3, and not the description of anciliary servioes in PAS 40, is used to determine if the
transaction is a purchase of an asset or business combination. The description of ancillary
services in PAS 40 only differentiates between investment property and owner-occupied

property (i.e., property, plant and equipment).

Effective January 1, 2016

»  PAS 16, Property, Plent and Equipment and PAS 38, Intangible Assets - Clarification of
Aceeptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortization (Amendments), the amendments
clarify the principle in PAS 16 and PAS 38 that revenue reflects a pattern of economic
benefits that are generated from operating & business (of which the asset is part) rather than the
economic benefits that are consumed through use of the asset. Ag a result, a revenue-based
method cannot be used to depreciate property, plant and equipment and may only be used in
very limited circumstagices to amortize intangible assets. The amendments are sffective
prospectivefy for annuel periods beginning on or after Japuary 1, 2016, with early adeption

permitted.

v PAS 16, Properwy, Plant and Equipment and PAS 41, Agriculture - Bearer Plants
(Amendments}, the amendments change the accounting requirements for biclogical assets that
meet the definition of bearer plants.  Under the amendments, biological assets that meet the
definition of bearer piants will no longer be within the scope of PAS 41. Instead, PAS 16 will
apply. After initial recognition, bearer plants will be measured under PAS 16 at accumulated
cost (before maturity) and using either the cost model or revaluation model {(after maturity).

IR




“scope of PAS 41 measured at fair value less costs 10 se

" financial statements wiil have to apply

‘between an investor and its associate or joint venture.

5.

The amendments also require that produce that grows on bearer plants will remain in the
1. For government grants related to
bearer piants, PAS 20, decounting for Government Gramis and Disclosure of Government
Assistance, will apply. The amendments are retrospectively effective for annual periods
beginming on or after January 1, 2016, with early adoption permitted. This standard is not

relevant to the Company.

PAS 27, Separate F tnancial Statements - Equity Method in Separate F inancial Statements
(Amendments), the amendments will allow entities to use the equity method to account for
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their separate financial statements.
Entities already applying PFRS and electing to change o the equity method in its separate
that change retrospectively. For first-time adopters of
PFRS electing to use the equity method in its sepasate financial staternents, they will be
required to apply this method from the date of fransition to FFRS. The amendments are
effactive for annual periods beginning on or after fanuary 1,2016, with sarly adoption.
permitted. The Standard is not relevant to the Company. -

PFRS 10, Consolidated Financial Statements and PAS 28, Invesimenis in Associates and Joint
Ventures - Sale or Contribution of Assets berween an Investor and its Associate or Join!
Venture, these amendments address an acknowledged inconsistency between the requirements

in PFRS 10 and those in PAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or comiribution of assets
The amendments require that a full gain

saction involves a business (whether it is housed in 2

or losg is recognized when a tran
ion invelves assets that

subsidiary or not). A partial gain or loss is recognized when & transact
do not constitute a business, even if these assets are housed in a subsidiary. These
amendments are effective from annual periods beginning on or after Tanuary 1, 2016,

PERS 11, Joint drrangements - Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations

{ Amendments), the amendments to PFRS 11 require that & joint operator accounting for the
acquisition of an interest in a joint operation, in which the activity of the joint operation
constitutes a business must apply the relsvant PFRS 3 principles for business combinations
accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously held interest in a joint operation is
not remeasured on the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint operation while
jointcontrol is retained. In addition, scope exclusion has been added to PFRS 11 to specify
‘that the amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint control, inciuding the
reporting entity, ere under common control of the same ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the initial interest in a joint operation and the
acquisition of any additional iuterests in the same joint operation and are prospectively
effective for annual periods beginning on or after Japuary 1, 2016, with early adoption

permitted.

PFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an
regulation, to continue applying most of its existing
accounting policies for reguiatory deferral account balances upon its first-time adoption af
PERS. Eptities that adopt FFRS 14 must present the regulatory deferral accounts as separate
line items on the statement of financial position and present movements in these account
balances as separate {ine items in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, The standard requires disclosures on she nature of, and risks associated with, the
entity’s rate-regulation and the effects of that rate-regulation on its financial statements.
PFRS 14 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2016, The standard is

not relevant to the Company.

PFRS 14, Reguiatory Deferral Accounis,
entity, whose activities are subject to rate-

IIREMRRATER T
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s Ansual Improvements to PFRSs (2012 - 2014 cycle)

= PFRS 5, Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations - Changes in
Methods of Disposal, the amendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that changing
from a disposal through sale {o a disposal through distribution to owners and vice-versa
should not be considered to be & new plan of disposal, rather itis a continuation of the
original plan. There is, therefore, no interruption of the application of the requirements in
PFRS 5. The amendment also clarifies that changing the disposal method does not change

the date of classification.

»  PFRS 7, Financicl Instruments: Disclosures - Servicing Contracts, PERS 7 requires an
entity to provide disclosures for any continuing invoivernent in a transferred asset that is
derecognized in its entirety. The amendment clarifies that a gervicing confract that
inchudes a fee can constitute continuing involvement in a financial assel. An entity must,
assess ¢he nature of the fee and arrangement against the gnidance in PFRS 7 in order to
assess whether the disclosures are required. The amendment is to be applied such that the

- assessment of which servicing contracts constitute continuing involvement wili need to be
o done retrospectively. However, comparative disclosures are not required to be provided
for any period beginning before the annual period in which the entity first applies the

amendments.

» ' PFRS 7, Applicability of the Amendments to PFRS 7 1o Condensed Interim Financial
Statements, this amendment is applied retrospectively and clarifies that the disclosures on
offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities are not.required in the condensed
interim financial report unless they provide a significant update to the information
reported in the most recent annual report.

s PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Regional Market Issue Regarding Discount Rate, this
smendment is applied prospectively and clarifies that market depth-of high quality
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency it which the obligation is denominated,
rather than the country where the obligation is located. When- there is no deep market for
high quality corporate bonds iu that currency, government bond rates must be used.

o _ s PAS 34, Juterim Financial Reporting - Disclosure of Information ‘Elsewhere in the
pectively and clarifies that the

Interim Fincmcial Report’, the amendment is applied retros
required. interim disclosures must cither be in the interim financial statements or
incorporated by cross-reference between the interim financial statements and wherever
they are included within the greater interim financial repott (e.g., in the management

‘commentary or rigk report).

Effective January 1, 2018

unting and Amendments 1o PERS 9, PFRE 7 and

« PFRS 8, Financial Instruments - Hedge Acco
) already incindes the third phase of the project

PAS 19 (2013 version), PERS 9 (2013 Version
1o replace PAS 39 which pettains o hedge accounting. This version of PFRS 9 replaces the
rules-based hedge accounting model of PAS 39 with a more principles-based approachi.
Changes include replacing the rules-based hedge effectiveness test with an ob] ectives-based
test that focuses on the econoimic refationship betwesn the hedged item and the hedging
instrument, and. the effect of creditrisk on that economic relationship; alowing risk
componenis to be designated as the hedged item, not only for finaneial items but also for non-
finaneial items, provided that the risk component is separately identifiable and reliably
measurable; and allowing the time value of an option, the forward clement of a forward
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contract and any foreign cutrerncy basis spread to be excluded from the designation of' &
derivative instrument as the hedging instrument and accounted for as costs of hedging. PERS

0 also requires more extensive disclosures for hedge sccounting.

PFRS § (2013 version) has no mandatory effective date. The mandatory effective date of
January 1, 2018 was eventually set when the fina! version of PFRS 9 was adopted by the
FRSC. The adoption of the final version of PFRS 9, however, is still for approval by BOA.

Ffinal version), in July 2014, the final version of

w  PFRS 9, Financial Instruments (2014 or
4 PFRY 9 reflects all phages of the financial

PEFRS ¢, Financial mstruments, Was issue
instrizments project end replaces PAS 39, F imancial Instruments: Recognition and

Measurement, and all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge accounting. PFRS 9
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January {,72018, with early application
permitted. Retrospective application is required, but comparative information is not
compulsory. Early application of previous versions of PFRS 9 ts permitted if the date of
initial application is before February 1, 2015.

«  [FRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, IERS 15 was issued in May 2014 and
establishes a new five-step model that will apply to revenue arising from contracts with
customiers. Under IFRS 15 revenue is recognized at an amourt that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods ot services to a
customer. The principles in [FRS 15 provide a more structured approach to measuring and
recognizing revenue. The new revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will superseds
21} current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full or modified
retrospective application is required for annual periods heginning on or after January 1, 2017

with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently assessing the impact of TFRS 15 and
pians to adopt the new standard on the required effective date onee adopted locally.

Summary of Stgnificant Accounting Policies

Cash and Cash Bguivalents
Cash includes cash on hand and in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid

invesiments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three

months or less from dates of placement and are subject to an insignificant risk of changs in value,

Determination of Fair Value

Fair value is the price that would be rec
orderly transaction between market participants at the measuremen
measurement js based on the presumption that the transaction to se

liability takes place either:

eived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
t date. The fair value
1t the asset or transfer the

s in the principal market for the asset or Hability, or
s in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to the Company.

measured using the assumpticns that market participants

The fair velue of an asset or  liability is 1 et part
assuming that market participants act in their best

would use when pricing the asset or liability,
ecopomic interest.
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A fair value measursment of 2 nonfinancial asset takes inito account a market participant’s ability
to generate economic benefits by uging the asset in its highest and best use or by seiling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

the circumstancas and for which

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in 1
the use of relevant observable

sufficient data are available to measuré fair value, maximizing
inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disciosed in the Company’s financial
stateiments are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurament as a whoie:

Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identica

Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or.indirectly observable; and

Level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest Jevel input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is uncbservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recuiring basis, the
Company determines whether transiers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorization (based o the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting date.

The Company determines the policies and procedures for Hoth recurring and non-recurring fair
value measurements. For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined
classes of assets and Jiabilities on the basis of the nature, charactetistics and risks of the asset or
liability and the levei of the fair valus hierarchy. o

The Company recognizes sransfers into and trausfers out of fair value hierarchy levels by
reassessing categorization (based on the lowest leve] input that is significant to the fair value
measuremment as a whole) as at the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the

transfer.

Financia! [nstruments

Date of Recognition. The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in the
statements of financial position when it becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
{nstrument. In the case of a regular way purchase or sale of financial assets, recognition and
derecognition, as applicable, is done using settlement date accounting. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the perind

~ generally established by regulation or convention in the market place,

Initicl Recognition and Measurement. Financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value,

which is the fair vatue of the consideration given (in case of an asset} or reg:eivec? (in case of a
liability)., The initial measyrement of financial instruments, except for those designated at FVPL,

includes transaction cost,

JITAEN
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The Coernpany classifies its finaneial instruments in the following categories: financial assets and
Financial labilities at FVPL, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, AFS
investments and other financial liabilities. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
instruments are acquired and whether these are quoted in an active market, Management
determines the classification at initial recognition and, where allowed and appropriate, re-

evaluates this classification at every reporting date.

The Company has no HTM.investments and financial Liabilities at FVPL as at December 31, 2014
and 2013,

Subsequent Measwrement, The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their

- classification as foliows:

TLoans and Receivables. Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market, After initial measurement, such
£oancial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method -
(EIR), Jess impairment. Amortized cost is ealcuiated by taking into account any diseount or
premium on acquisition and fee or cosis that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization
ag well as the losses arising from impairment is included in the “Interest income” account in the
statement of comprehensive income. Loans and receivables are included in current assets il
maturity is within twelve months from the reporiing date. Otherwise, these are classified as

noncurrent asgets.

The Company’s loans and receivables include cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable.

AFS Investments. AFS investments are non-derjvative financial agsets which include equity
investments and debt securities, Equity investments classified as AFS are those that are neither
beld classified as held for trading nor designated at FVPL., Debt securities in this categoty are
these that are infended to be beld for an indefinite period of time and that may be sold in response
to needs for liquidity or in response io changes in market conditions.

After initial recognition, AFS investments are measured at Fair value with unrealized gains or
losses being recognized as a separate component of equity until the investment is derecognized ot
until the investment is determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss
previously reported in equity is included in the statement of comprehensive income. Unlisted AFS
financial assets, on the-other hand, are carried at cost, net of any impairment until the investment
s derecognized. Intersst earned while holding AFS investments is reported as interest income in
the statement of comprehensive income,

Jiabilities that are not held for

Other Financial Liabilities. This category periains to financial
liability., These include liabilities

trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the
arising from operations or borrowings. Other financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair
value and are subsequently carried at amortized cost, taking into account the impact of applying
the BIR method of amortization (or accretion) for any refated premium, discount and any directly’
attributable transaction costs. Gains and losses are recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

The Company’s financial liabilities inchide accounts payable and other current liabilities
(excluding statufery payables) and due to shareholders. .

Ag at December 31, 2014 and 2013, the Company does not have any financial liabtlities at FVPL

or derivatives designated as hedging instruments.

)
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Ciassification of Financial Instruments. Between T jabilitv and Equity
A financial instrument is classified as debt if it provides for a coniractual obligation to:

»  deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; of
»  exchange financial assets or {inancial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are

potentially unfavorable to the Company,; or
= gatisfy the obligation other than by the exchange of a fixed amouni of cash or another financial

 asset for 2 fixed qumber of own equity shares.

ave an unconditional right to avoid delivering cash or another financial -

" If the Company does not h
asset 1o settle its contractual obligation, the obligation meets the definition of & financia!l liability.
nat contain both Hability and equity elements are-

The componests of issued financial instruments t
accounted for separately, with the equity component being assigned the residual amount after

deducting from the instrument as a whoie the amount separately determined as the fair value of the
liability component on the date of issue. :

Derecoghition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Finaneial Asset. A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a financial asset or part ofa
group of similar financial assets) is derecognized when:

»  the right to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

+  the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either: (a) has
transferred substantially al} the risis and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the

asset.

When the Compary has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred conitrol of the asset, the asdet is recognized 1o the extent of the
Compary’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Company also recognizes an
associated liability, The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a'basig that
reflects the rights and obligations that the Company fias retained,

Finaneial Liabiliries. A financiel liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability
is discharged or cancelled or has expired.

When an existing financial tiability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially

different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or

modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recoghition of a new
gnized in the statement of

liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts 13 reco
comprehensive income. :

Impairment of Financial Agsets ‘
The Company assesses al each reporting date whethet a financial asset ot group of fma‘nci&l assets
is impaired. A financial asset or 2 group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired, if and only
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that-o;:_currcd after
the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred loss syent) and that loss event has an impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or a group of Financial assets that can be reliably
ostimated. Objective evidence of impairment may include indications that the borrower or a group
of borrowers is expetiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinguency in interast or

T
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principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptey or ather financial
reorganization and where observable data indicate that there is measurable decrease in the
estimated firture cash flows, such as changes in arrears ot economic conditions that correlate with

defaults,

51 Ifthere is objective evidence that an impairment loss

Financial Assets Carried at Amortized o,
d, the amount of the loss is measured as the

on assets carried at amortized cost bas been meurre
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present vaiue of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the
finaneial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.6., the effective interest rate computed at initial
recoguition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the loss shall be recognized in the statement of éomprehensive income.
The financial assets, together with the associated allowance accounts, are writier, off when there.is

no realistic prospect of future recovery.

The Company first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, and individuatly or collectively for financial
assets that are not individually significant, If it is determined that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individuaily assessed financial asset, whether stgnificant or not, the asset
is included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of
financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are no longer

included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment ioss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously
recognized impairment 10ss is reversed, to the extent that the carrying valus of the asset does not
exceed its amortized cost at the reversal date. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Interest income continues to be accrued on
the reduced carrying amount basad on the original effective interest rate of the asset. Loans,
together with the assoeiated allowance, are written off when. there is no realistic prospect of futurs
recovery and all collateral, if any, has been realized or has been transferred to the Company. Ifz
future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is recoghized in the statement of comprehensive
income. Anysubsequent seversal of an impairment loss is recognized in the stafement aof
comprehensive income, to the extent that the carrying value of the assef does not exceed it

amortized cost at the reversal date.

ied at Cost. If there is an objective evidence that an impairment loss has
instrument that is not carried at fair vaiue because its fair
value cannot be reliably measured, or on derivative asset that is Hinked to and must be settled by
delivery of such an unquoted equity instrument, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
discounted at the current market rate of return for a similar financial asset.

Financial Assets Carr
been incurred on an unquoted equity

“Day ] Difference.” Where the transaction price is different from the fair value of other

observable current market transactions in the same instrument or hased on a valuation technique
whose variables inciude only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the difference
between the transaction price and fair value of the financia} instruments (a “Day 1 difference”) 1
profit or logs unless it qualifies for recognition as some other type of agset. In cases where data
which is not observable is used, the difference between the transaction price and model value ig
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only recog“nized‘ in profit or loss when the mputs become observable or when the insfrument is
derecognized. For each transaction, the Company detertines the appropriate method of
recognizing the “Day 1 difference” amount. : :

Qffsetting of Financial Instriments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statements

of financial position if, and only if, there is a eurrently enforceable legal right 1o offset the
recognized amounts and there is an intention to geftle on a net basis, ar to realize the assets and
seitle the liabilities simultaneousiy. This is not generslly the case with master netting agreements,
therefore, the related assets and liabilities are presented af gross in the statements of financial

position.

Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued. Incremental costs jncurred directly

attributable to the issuance of new shares are shown in equity as & deduetion from proceeds, net of .
tax. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value are recognized as

additional paid-in capital.

EBarnings per sharg

Basic earnings pet share (EPS) amounts dre calculated by dividing net income for the year by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The Company has no
dilutive potsniial common shares outstanding, therefore, basic EPS is the same as diluted EPS.

Revenue ‘
Revenus is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Company and the amount can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being
made. Revenue is measured at the fair valus of the consideration received or receivable, taking
info account contractuatly defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Company
assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as

pringipal or agent.

Interest Income. Revenue is recognized as the interest acorues, taking intc account the effective

yield un the asset,

Fxercise Fees. Revenue is recognized upon conversion of PDRs to common shares.

Expenses ‘ :
fixpenses presented as “Operating expenses” account in the statements of comprehensive income

are recognized as incurred.

Taxes

e tax assets and I;iabili.ties for the current period are measured
ed from or paid to the taxation authorities, The tax rates and
that are enacted or substantially enacted at

Cuprent lcome Tax. Curtent incom
at the amount expected to be recover
tax laws used to compuie the amount are those
reporting date.

d directiy in equity is recognized in equity and not
ns taken in the tax returns with respect
o interpretation and establishes

Current income tax relating to items recognize
in profit or loss. Management periodically evaluates positic
10 situations in which applicable tax regulations are subject t

provisions where appropriate.
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Deferred Income Tax. Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on temporary
differences at reporting date between the tax bases of assets and Habilities and their carrying

amownts for finencial reporting puposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the exteit that it is probable that
cufficient taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences can

be utilized.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits
of excess minimum corporate income fax (MCIT) over regular corporate income tax (RCIT) and
net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward benefits of

excese MCTT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except:

s where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of an asset or liability ‘n a transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, atfects neither the accounting income nor taxable orofit or.
Josy; and

s in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates and interest in joint arrangements, deferred tax assets are revognized only to the
oxtent that it is probabie that the temporary differences will reverse in the foresesable futre
and taxable income will be-available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at sach reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it 18 50 longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow ali or
part of the deferred tax assets 0 be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed al
gach reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become prebable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax assets o be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply fo the
year when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws to be

enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current
tax assels against current fax lizbilities and the deferred taxes relate to the sems taxable entity and

the same taxation authority.

" Income tax relating to other comprehersive income is recogaized in other comprehensive income

section of the statements of comprehensive income.

value-added Tax (VAT). Revenuc, eXpenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT,

the taxation authority is included as part

The net amount of VAT recaverable from, or payable 10,
ble and other current labilities”

of “Prepaid tax and other current asgets” or “Accounts paya
accounts in the statements of financial position.

Provisijons :
Provisions are recogaized when the Company has & present obligation (legal or constructive) whers,

as a result.of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of assets embodying economic 't‘)eneﬁts will
ba required to settle the obligation and 4 reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation, If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by

TR
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discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-fax rate that reflects curtent market assessments
of the time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. Where '
discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of titne is recagnized as inferest
expense. Where the Company expects & provision to be reimbussed, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when the receipt of the reimbursement is virtuelly certain.

Confingeneies .
Contingent Habilities are not recognized in the financial statements, These are disclosed in the

. notes to financial statements unfess the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying

economic benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not reco gnized in the financial statements but
are- disclosed in the notes to financizl statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date
Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s position at the

reporting date (adjusting svents) are reflected in the financial statements. Post year-end events
that are not adjusting events ars disclosed in the notes © financial statements when material,

- determination is deemed based on management

Summary of Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in compliance with PFRS requires the Company 10
make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Future events may occur which can,
cause the estimates used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effects of any changes in
estimates will be recognized in the financial statements as these become reasonably determinable.

Judgments and estimates are continually evaluated and are based on higterical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be determinable under

the gircumstances.

Tudgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the

following judgment, apart from those lnvolving estimates and assuriptions, which has the most
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

Determining Fair Value of AFS Investment, The Cootnpany has no intention of selling its AFS
investrnent in the near term. If is being held indefinitely and may be sold in Tesponse o liquidity
requirements or cHAanges in market condition. Accordingly, the Company has classified its Union
Bank of the Philippines Tier 2 Note, or UBP Tier Note, as AFS investment. The Company has no
plans to digpose its AFS investment within 12 months from the end of the reporting date.

ries AFS investment at fair value. Fajr value of ATS investment recorded in the

¢ be derived from active markets, hence fair value
's estimate of amounts that could be jealized under

liquidation over & reasonable period of time.

The Company car
statements of financial position canno

current market conditions, assuming an otderly

The fair vaiue of AFS investment is discussed in Note 14.

Estimates and Assurnptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
reporting date, +hat have a significent risk of causing a
amounts of assets and Habilities within the pext financia.

key sources of estimation uncerlainty at
material adjustment to the carrying
| year are discussed below. The Company
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based its assumptions and estimates on paramefers availabie when the financial statements were
prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may
change due to market changes or circumsiances arising beyond the control of the Cempany. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions whex these occur.

Impairment of AFS Investments. The Company assesses individuaily at sach reporting date
whether there is an objective evidence that an investment based on the same criteria as financial
assets carried at amortized cost. However, the Compaty-aiso recognizes an impairment loss, if
and only if, it is probable that the Company will sel) the investments and the expected cash tlows
to be realized from the disposal of the ATS investments are less than their carrying valuss,

in 2014 and 2013, The carrying value of AFS

There were no- provisions for impairient losses
as at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively

investment amounted to B21.76 million and ni}
{see Note 7).

Estimating Realizability of Deférred fax Assets. The Company’s assessment on the recognition of

deferred tax assets on nondeductible temporary- differences and carryforward benefits of NOLCO

' and excess MCIT is based on the forecasted taxabie income in the subsequent periods. This

forecast is based on the Company’s future expectations on revenue and expenses,

The Company did not recognize deferred tax assets amounting to B0.87 million and P1.05 million
as at December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively as management believes that
sufficient taxable profit will not be available against which the deductible temporary differences

can beatilized (see Note 11).

(¥4

conditions, the delivery of one GMA share or the sale of and del

Philippine Deposit Recelpts

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued 822,115,000 PDRs relating to 822,1 15,000 GMA shares,
On August 21, 2007, additional 123,317,000 PDIRs were issued relating t0-123,317,000 GMA
shares. Each PDR. was issued for a total consideration of BR.50.

Each PDR grants the holders, upon payment of the exercise price and subject to certain other

ivery of the proceeds of such sale
of one GMA share. The Company remains fo be the registered owner of the GMA shares covered
by the PDRs, The Company also retains the voting rights over the GMA shares.

ship restrictions on shares of corporations engagsd.in
mass media and GMA may reject the transfer of shares to persons cther than Philippine nationals.
The PDRs were listed in the PSE on July 30, 2007, and the same may be exercised at any time
from said date. Any cash dividends or other cash distributions in respect of GMA shares received
by the Company shall be applied toward the operating expenses of the Company for the current
and preceding years. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall
be set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding vears. Any amountin excess
of the aggregate of the operating expenses paid and the operating fund for such period shali be
distributed to PDR holders pro-rata on the first business day after such cash dividends are received

by the Company.

The GMA. shares are still subject to owner

Upon exercise of the PDRs, an exercise price of B0.05 (VAT inclusive) per share shall be paid by
the PDR holders. The exercise price is shown as “Exercise fees” account in the stateiments of
comprehensive income. Exercise fees amounted to B0.41 miliion, nif and 80.22 111_11!10[1 in 2014,

12013 and 2012, respectively.
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Immediately prior to the closing of the PDR offering and additiopal issuances described abovs,
(MA, to whick the Company is affiliated, transferred 045,432,000 (3MA shares to the Company
in relation to which the PDRs were issued. For as long as the PDRs are not exercised, the shares
underlying the PDDRs will continue to be registered in the name of and owned by the Company,
and all rights pertaining to these shares, including voting rights, shall be exercised by the |
Company. The obligations of the Company to deliver the GMA shares on excrcise of the right
contained in the PDRs are secured by tie Pledge of Shares in favor of the Pledge Trustee acting on

behalf of each holder of a PDR over the GMA shares.
at his option and from time to time, deliver

The exchange iz based on
i the corresponding PDR

At any time afier the PDR offering, a sharehoider may,
shares to the Company in exchange for an equal number of PDRs.
prevailing traded value of GMA shares at the time of transaction wi

option price.

Ag mentioned above, the Company retains the rights to receive the cash flows from its investment
in GMA and sssumes a contractual obligation to pay those cesh fiows to the PDR holders, net of
operating expenses (2 “pass-througn” arrangement). The “pass-through” test is met because the
Compaiy (a) has no obligation to the PDR holders unless it collects equivalent amounts from its
iavestment in GMA, () is contractually prohibited from selling or pledging its investment in
(IMA other than as security to the PDR helders for the obligation to pay the cash flows, and

. (c) has an obligation o remit any cash flows from the imvestment in GMA to the PDR holders
without material delay.

Under the “pass-through” test, the Company is deemed to have fransferred substantialty the risks
and rewards of ite investment in GMA. Accordingly, the investment in GMA and the liabilities
related to the issuance of the PDRs are not recognized by the Company.

The following are the details and movemenfs of thie PDRs and the underlying GMA shares for the

years ended Decemtber 31:

PDRs Number of Shates
2014 2013 2014 2013
Balance at beginning of year 7,188,393,300 F7,285,833,300 57,509,800 857,509,800
Exercise of PDRs (77,200.800) - (9,164,800} -
27,210,932,500 ?7,2’88,333,’300 448,345,008 §57,509,500

" Halapee at end of year

+ distribution to. PDR holders of B0.27 per share, in

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a casi
23 million to all shareholders of record &s

relation to dividends declared by GiMA, totaling to B231.
at April 24, 2014, These were remitted to. PDR holders on May 20, 2014,

On Aprij 24, 2013, the Company approved 4 cash distribution to PDR holders of 0.25 per share,
‘1 relation to dividends deciared by GMA, totaling to B214.38 million to all shareholdess of record
as at Aprii 17, 7013, These were remitted to PDR holders on May 15, 2013,

recoive cash flows from its investments in GMA but it also
flows to the PDR hoiders which is considered 2
did not recognize the dividend income received
e underlying shares of GMA i s

The Company refains the right o
assumes a contractual obli gaiion to pay those cash
“nass~through” arrangement. Thus, the Compeny
from CIMA arising from the acquisition and holding of th

financinl statemnents.

F
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Event after the Reporting Date

On March 30, 2015, the Company app
in selation to dividends declared by GMA, tota
at April 24, 2015 and will be paid on May 19, 2015,

roved a cash distribution to PIDR holders of #0.25 per share,
ling 2211.75 million to all sharsholders of record as

Cash and Cash Equivalents

2014 2013
C'ash on hand and in banks $1,240,820 E1,643,366
Short-term deposiis 25,424,401 46,286,622

P26,605,221 B47.929.983

ive bank deposit rates. Short-term deposits are made for

Cash in banks earts interest at the respect
ash requirements of the

varying periods of up fo three months depending on the immediate ¢
Company, and earn interest at the respective shori-term deposit rates.

Tnterest income earned from cash in banks and short-term deposits amounted to £1.12 miltior,
£1.21 million and #1.69 millien in 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively. :

~3

Availgble-for-sale Investment

per 2 ten-year UBP Tier Note with a face value of

In 2014, the Company purchased at
aturity date of this note is on

$21.00 million bearing a fixed intevest rate of 5.3 8%. Them
February 20, 2023,

Interest incotns earned on the UBP Tier Note amounted to F0.12 miflion in 2014,

“The movement in AFS investment is as follows:

Balance at beginning of year B
Additions : 21,600,000
Change in fair valus 759,21¢
Balanee at end of year 121,759,216

As at December 31, 2014, movement of net unrealized gain on AFS investment is as follows:

Balance at begiuning of year : P
Gain due to changes in fair market value of AFS
invesiment - 759,216
Tax sffect of the changes in fair market values ‘ (227,765)
P331,45]

W
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S, Accourts Payable and Other Current Liabilities

| 2014 2013

Acoounts payable 29,240 BG7.434
Accrued expenses:

Professional and trust fees 225,910 657,824

Others o 1,760 4,280

Deferred output VAT 4284 —

' ‘ . B241,1%4 B720,558

Accounis payable and accrued expenses are neninterest-bearing and are normally settled within
the next financial year. Accrued expenses represent acorued audit fees, retainer fees and
miscelianeous cxpensss.

9. Equity
~a. Capital Stock

The Company has 10,000 authorized, subscribed and issued comymon shares with £#10.00 par
value per share,

The following summarizes the information on the Company’s registration of securities with
the SEC as required by Securities Regulation Code Rule 63, As Amendesd (2011):

Authorized Numlber
. Number of Tssued Issue/
Date of SEC Approval of Shares Shares Offer Price
July 30, 2007 ' . 945,432,000 945,432,000 ‘ £8.50

b, Retained Earnings

On March 30, 2015, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of cash
dividends amounting to R0.50 million to all stockholders of record as at December 31, 2014,

The Company has no dividend declaration in 2013,

1n 2012, the Company declared B259 per share cash dividends amounting to 22,59 million to
all stockholders of record as at May 23, 2012, This was paid on June 8, 2012,

10, Dperating Expenses

2014 2013 2012
Listing fees BG90,295 2705,199 P560,275
Professional fees 280,085 479,835 479,835
Taxes and licenses . 42,788 33,168 ’ 33,239
{Others 31,838 31,982 24,605

21,045,026 B1,344,184 B1,097.854

L
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. Income Taxes

Current Income Tax ‘
The compouents of the Company’s provision for current

income tax are as follows:

- 2014 2013 2012
Final tax interest £248,563 £241,099 2337,512
MCIT 8,183 - 4,451

#256,746 241,099 B341,063

The reconciliation of the provision for income iax computed at statufory income tax rate and the
provision for income tax as shown 1 the statements of comprehensive income is summarized as

follows:
2014 2013 2012
Income tax computed at stalutory L ‘ :
incomne tax rate ?152,080 B41,607) P243,420
Deduction in income tax resulting
fromn
Interest income already
subjecied to final tax (124,282} {120,549) {168,526}
Change in unresognized deferred tax- 3
~ mssets (181,061) 326,963 723,368
Expired NOLCO and MCIT 380,009 76,290 -
' B256,746 B241,099 P798,262

Unrecognized Defegred Tax Assets , ' ,
In 2017, the Company’s 2011 recognized deferred tax assets on NOLCQ and MCIT amouniing to

B434,638 and B21,1661, respectively, were derecognizad as management believes that sufficient
taxable profit will not be available against which the deductible temporary differences can be

atilized,

The unrecognized deferred tax assets a5 at December 31 are as follows:

2014 2013

NOLCO 856,638 B1,045,882
MCIT ' 12,634 . 4,451
£869,272 21,050,333

cember 31, 2014, NOLCO and MCIT that can be claimed as deduction from future

As at De
taxable income and RCIT due, raspectively, are as follows:
Date Pajd/Incurred  Carryforward Benefit Up To NOLCO MCIT
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2015 £875,394 B4,451
December 31, 2013 December 31, 2016 1,344,184 -
December 31, 2014 December 31,2017 $35,883 8,183
. ' B8] 855,461 £12,634

IRl
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The movements in NOLCO and MCIT follow:

2014 2013
NOLCO:
Balance at beginning of year 23,486,273 B2.324,187
Additions £33,883 1,344,184
Expired NOLCO {1,266,695) (182,098)
Balance at end of vear P1,855.461 B3.486,273
MCIT: ‘

Balance at beginning of year B4,451 P6,112
Additions 8,183 -
Bxpired MCIT - (21,661)
Balance at end of year P12,634 4451

‘s ab December 31, 2014, deferred tax liability pertains to unrealized gain on AFS investment
amounting to 20.23 million presented under equity in the statements of financial position.

12. Related Party Disclosures

Parties are considered to berelated
the other party or exercise signifi
operating decisions. Parties are &

control.

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties

Transactions with related parties have been entered mto at terms no
been obtained if the transtctions were entered into w
financial statements include the following amounts resu

partiss as at December 310 .

L if one party has the ability, directly and indirectly, to control
cant infiuence over the other party in making financial and
tso congidered to be related if they are subject to common

less favorable than could have

ith unrelated parties. The Company’s
lting from the transactions with related

Amount/Volume Qutstanding
Criegory Year  of Trangactions Paysble Terms - Conditions
Sharehivlders ’
" Portion of proceeds retained 2014 B ®47,271,600) Upon demand, Unsecured
from issuance of PDRs 2013 - (47,271,600} ©  noninterest-bearing '
Unsecured

Beio, Gozon, Elma Law Firm 2014
2013

The outstanding balance of “Dus to shareholders” ace
pertains to B0.05 per PDR portion of the original proce
n for the rights granted under the PDRs.

issuer, in consideratio

liquidation of expenses reiated to the issuance of the ¥

selling shareholders.

The Company's key management personnel are &

was allocated to the Company,

{90,00%) Upon demand,

164,835 - {432,824}  noninterest-bearing

TR

ount in the statements of financial position
eds retained by the Company, as the FDR
This amount will be used for the
DRs, Any excess is to be remitted to the

ployed by GMA and no part of their salaries

I
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13, Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company’s principal financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, The main
purpose of these financial instruments includes raising financing for the Company's operations
and managing identified financial risks, The Company has other finangial assets and liabilities
such as accounts receivable, accounts payable and other cmrent liabilities {excluding statutory
payables) and due to sharebolders, which arise directly from its operations, Liquidity risk, interest
rate risk, fair value interest rate risk and credit risk are the main risks arising from the Company’s

financial instruments.
The BOD reviews and approves the Company’s objectives and policies.

Liguidity Risk. The Company is sxposed 1o the possibility that adverse changes in the business
environment and/or its operations would result in substantially higher working capital
requirements and subsequently pose difficulty in financing the additional working capital.

The Company manages its liquidity risk by using fts cash and cash equivalents from operations ¢
meet its short-term liquidity needs. The Company likewise regularly evalfuates other financing
instruments and arrangements to broaden the Company’s range of finanging sources,

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets used for
Tquidity risk management purposes and financtal liabilities based on contractual undiscounted

payments a5 at December 31:

As at December 31, 2014

. More than
Op Demand 3 to 12 Months 1 year Total
Financial Assets _ .
Cash and cash equivalonts - 26,668,221 [ B ¥16,665,221
AFS investment ‘ - - 21,759,216 11,759,216
B26,665,221 [ ¥21,759,216 P48.424,437
Financial Liabilities
Accounts savable and other _
current liabilities® B236,910 B P B236,910
Due to shareholders - 47,271,600 o - 47,271,600
747,508,518 = - P47,508,510
*Exciuding deferrad vupue VAT amownting 104,284 as at December 31, 20i4.
As at December 31, 2013
On Demand 3 to 12 Months Total
Financial Asset _
Cash and cash squivalents R47 929,988 P £47,929 988
Financial Liabiiities
Accounts payable and other :
' B _ B729,558

current liabilities £729,558
Due to sharcholders 47,271,600 47,271,600
248,001,158 B P48,001,158

i
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Interest Rate Risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to

instrument will
d to cash and cash equivalents.

changes in interest rates is minimal and Is attribute

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s income before income ax for
the vears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 to a reasonably possible change in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant. There is no impact on the Company’s eguity other than

those already affecting profit or loss.

Increase
(Decrease) in ‘Effect on Income Before Income Tax
Basis Points 2014 2013
Cash and cash equivalents 50 P133,301 230,625
L (50) (133,301) (239,625)

Fair Vaiue Interest Rate Risk, The Company follows a prudent policy or managing its assets and
liabilities to ensure that exposure to fluctuations in interest rates are kept within acceptable limits,
There are no floating rate financial assets and financial liabilities. Term deposits with banks and
debt securities carry fixed rates thronghout the period of deposit or piacement.

The Company’s AFS investment earns fixed jnterest rate at 5.38% in 2014, Fixed interest rate
instrument exposes the Company to fair value interest raie risk, such as the fair value will fluctuate
because of changes in matket prices. In crder to manage its interest rate risk, the Company places
its excess funds in high vield investments and other shori-term deposits.

The foliowing table below demonstrates the sensitivity of fair vatue changes due to pessible
change in interest rates with all other variables held constant. ‘

Increase
(Decrease) in _Effect on Bquity
o Basis Points 2014
AFS investment | o 30 (BB04,227)
(50 843,111

Credit Risk. Credit tisk, or the risk of counterparties defaulting, is controlled by the application of
oredit approvals, limits and monitoring procedures. [t is the Company’s policy to enter info
transactions with a diversity of creditwerthy parties to mitigate any significant concentration of
credittisk, The Company eusures that services are made to customers. with appropriate credit
history. The Company has an interna! mechanism to monitor the granting of credit and

management of credit exposures. The Company has made provisions, where necessary, for
potential Josses on credits extended, The Company’s exposure 1o eredit risk arises from default of
ing amount of the instruments. The

the counterparty with a maximum sxposure equal fo the cartyl
Company does not require any collateral for its finangial assets.

The credii quality of financial assets is managed by the Company using high grade and standard

grade as internal credit rafings. .
mpany to default in settling

High Grade. Pertains to a counterparty who i8 not expected by the Co
ludes large prime financial

its obligations, thus, credit risk exposure is minimal. This normally inc
institutions and related parties.: :
gh grade are included in this category.

IR

Standerd Grade, Other financial assets not classified as hi



‘No changes were made in the objectives,
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The Company slassified its cash and cash equivalents (exciuding cash on hand) and accounts
receivabic as high grade financial assets as at December 31, 2014 and 2013.

As at December 31, the aging analysis of accounts receivabie is as follows;
2044 - 2013
Meither past due nor impaired B143,407 - B72,680
Past due but not impaired:

31-60 days 30,600 -

61150 days 9,380 -

151365 days ) - 80,630

: 183,387 B123.310

Capital Management

The primary objective of the Company’s capital managemext is to ensure that it maintains a strong

credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholder

value:

apital structure and makes adjustments to it, in the light of changes
intain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
in capital to shareholders or issue

The Company manages iis ¢
economic conditions. To ma
dividend payment to shareholders, payoff existing debts, refu

new shares.

policies or proces;ses for the three years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012,

Tie Company’s capital management is undertaken by GMA. The capital includes the total equity,
which amounted to 0,64 milkion and 20,29 million as at December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively.

14,

13.80% in 2014, The fair value is under level 2 of the

Financial Assets and Liabilithes

Fair Valug Determinatiqn ‘
The following methods and assumptions are used 10 estimate the fair value of each asset and

liability for which it i§ practicable to estimate such value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Accounts Receivable, Accounts Pavable aud Other Current Liabiljiies

(excluding Statutory Pavables) and [ue to Shareholders
The carrying amounis approximate the fair values due to the shori-term maturities of these

financial instruments,

AFS investment .

Unquoted AFS investment is carried at fair value based on observable market data, which ig

estimated using the discounted cash flow methodology. Discount rates used range from 2.38% to
fair vajue hisrarchy.

A
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15. Basic/DHluted Earaings (Loss) Per Share Computation

Rasic/diluted EPS is computed as follows: :
2014 2013 2012

Net iucome atiributable to equity

holders {(a) 2350,186 (B379,790) B13,139
Common shares issues at beginning

and end of vear (b) 10,000 16,000 10,000
Basic/diluted earnings (loss) per

share (a/b) »35.02 (B37.98) P1.31

16, Suppiementary Information Required by Revenue Regulations (RR) No. 15-2010
RR 15-2010
The Company reported and/or paid the following types of taxes in 2014:

Value added tax (VAT)

The Company’s sales are subj.ecf to output VAT while its purchases from other VAT-registered
individuals or corporations are subject to input VAT, The VAT rate is 12.0%.

a. Net Sales/Receipts and Output VAT declared in the Company’s VAT returns

The Company’s taxable sales from services amounted to 373,446 with corresponding output
VAT of 244,814, |

The Company’s sales that are subject fo output VAT are reported under “xercise Fee”
account in the statement of comprehensive income. :

b. Input VAT
Balance at January ! ‘ : B19B,178
Current year's domestic purchases for services . 149,508
2347686

Total claims at December 31, 2014

Other Taxes and Licenses

Al other local and national taxes paid for the year ended December 31,2014 consist of:

Tocal taxes and license fees P42 288
' ' ’ . 500

Registration fees 7
' P42,788

|
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' Withholding Taxes
" Withhoiding taxes paid and/or withheld for the year ended December 31, 2014 consist oft

230,741,802
13,966
B30,755.768

Final withholding tax
Bxpanded withholding tax

Tax Assessments and £ases

As at December 31, 2014, the Company has no ongoing tax assessments and cases with the

Bureau of Internal Revenue (BIR). Likewise, the Company has no other pending tax cases outside

the administration of the BIR as at December 31, 2014,

ISR

i
i

|



GA HOLDINGS, INC.

INDEX TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014 ‘ :

1I.

Il

IV,

Supplemental schedules required by Annex 68-E

A,

B.

G.

H.

Financial assets

Armounts receivabie from directors, officers, e:mpioy'ees,
related parties and principal stockholders {other than

related parties)

Amounts of recelvables and péyabla from/to related parties which are
eliminated during consolidation process of financial statements

Intangible assets - other asset

'Long—t_émz debt

Indebtedness to related parties {Long-term loans from related parties)
Chuarantees of securities of other issuers

Capital stock

Yoheduie of all the effective standards and- interpretations

Reconciliation of retained earnings available for dividend declaration

Schedule of financial ratios

Attached

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not applicable
Mot applicable
Not applicable
Not applicabie
Attached
Attached
Attached

Attached



SEC Accreditation No. C012-FR-3 (Group A),

- = = Yo VgRET Ly sy.comiph
Novemper 15, 2012, valid until Navember 18, 2015

Building a better Philippines
woriking worid

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS® REFORT
ON SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
OMA Holdings, Inc.

5D Tower Cne, One McKinley Place

New Global Bonifacio City

Fort Bonifacic, Taguig City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the {inancial statements of
GMA Holdings, Inc. as at December 31, 2014 and 2013 and for each of the three vears in-the period
ended December 31, 2014 included in this Form 17-A, and have issued cur report thereon dated
March 30, 2015. Oursudits wete mads for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial
ciatements faken as 2 whole. These schedules listed in the Index to F inancial Statements and
Supplementary Schedules are the responsibility of the Company’s management. These schedules are
presentsd for purposes af complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011),
-and are not part of the basic financial statements. These schedules have been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, faitly state, i all
material respects, the information required to.be set forth therein in relation to the basic financial

staternents taken as @ whole,

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

‘ B é
Marydz C. Miguel

Partner

CPA Certificate No, 65356

SEC Accreditation No. 0087-AR-3 (Group A),

January 18,2013, valid until January 17,2016

Tax identification Ne. 102-092-270

BIR Accreditation No, 08-001998-55-2015,
February 27, 2015, valid until February 26, 2018

PTR No. 4751303, January §, 2015, Makat: City

March 30, 2015

IR

A mambar firm of Ernst & Young Globs! Limited



GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

I SUPPLEMENTAL SCHEDULES REQUIRED BY ANNEX §3-E

AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

Sehednle A, Finapcial Assets

MNumber of shares

Value based on
Amount shown in market quotation

. or principal
Name of issuing entity and amount of bonds the staiements of  at end of reporting Income received
association of each issue and rates finencial position period and accrued
Cash and cash equivalents '
Cash on hand R3,000 P P
Cash in banks - 1,235,820 - 11,740
1,240,820 ~ 11,740
Peso Placemsnts
Union Banl of the
Philippines : - - - 210,275
Unicapital, Inc. - 25,424,401 - §95,043
- 25,424,401 - 1,105,318
Total . Z £76,665,221 B B1117,058
Available-for-zale investment - R11,756,216 - R125,757
Schedule H, Capital Stock
Number of
shares issued
and Number
outstanding of shares
as shown  reserved for
under related options,
statements of warrants, Number
Number financial  comversion of shares hield Directors,
of shares position and other by related  officers, and
Title of issue authorized -caption rights parties  employees Others
" Commen 16,000 10,000 ~ — 4,991 0
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

11, SCHEDULE OF ALL THE EFFECTIVE STANDARDS AND H‘ITERPRETATIONS
AS AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

Statements

characteristics

Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial

Conceptual Framework Phase A Objectives and gualitative

PERSs Practice Statement Management Commentary

Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

PFRE 1
(Rev'ised)

First-time Adoption of Philippine Financial Reporting

Standards

Amendments to PFRS 1 and PAS 27: Cost of an
Investment ina Subsidiary, Jointly Controlled Entity
or Agsociate

Amendments to PFRS 1 Additional Exemptions for
First-time Adopters

Amendment i PYRS 1; Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time
Adopters :

Amendments io PERS 1: Severs Hyperinflation and
Remioval of Fixed Date for First-tine Adopters

Amendments to. PFRS 1 Govermment Lozns

Amendment to PFRS 1 First-time Adoption of

Philippine Financiat Reporting Standards - Meaning

of ‘Effective PFRSs’

PFRE 2

Share-based Payment

Amendments to PFRS 2: Vesting Conditions and
Cancellations

Amenchments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share-
based Payment Transactions

Amendments to PFRS 2: Share-based Payment -
Definition of Vesting Condition*

. Naot Early Adopted

PFRS 3

{Revised)

Business Combinafions

Pusiness Combinations - Accounting for Contingett
Consideration in.a Business Combination”

Not Early Adopied

Business Combinations - Scope Exceptions for Jeint

Arrangements*

Not Barly Adopted




PYFRS 4

o, -t el S Z

Insurance Contracts

Amendmentsto PAS 39 and PFRS 4 Financial
Guaraniee Contracis

PEFRS S

Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Cperations .

Amendments 1o FFRS 5: Changes in Methods of -
Disposal® ‘ :

Not Barly Adopted

PFRE 6

Exploration for-and Evaluation of Mineral Resources

PFRS 7

Financial Instruments: Disclosures

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets

Amendments to PAS 39 and FFRS 7: Reclassification
of Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to PFRS 7, Improving Disclosures
about Financial Instumerits

Amendments to PERS 7: Disclosures. - Transfers of
| Financial Assets

Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PFRS 7: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS 9 and Transition Disclosures

Amendinents 1o PFRS 7; Disclosures - Servicing
Coniracts*

Not Early Adopted

Amendments to PFRS 7: Applicabliity of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed literim
Financial Statements* '

Not Early Adopted

PFRS 8

Operating Segmenis

Amendments to PFRS 8: Operating Segments -
Aggregation of Operating Segments ard
Reconcillation of the Total of the Reportable
Segments’ Assets to the Eatity’s Asseis™

Not Early Adopted

PYRE S

Tiganeis! Ingfruments®

Mot Early Adoptad

Amendments to PFRS 9: Mandatory Effective Date of
PFRS ¢ and Transition Disclosures®

'N-ot Early Adopted

PFRS 10

Consolidaied Financial Statements

Amendmentsto PFRS 10: Ivestment Entities




Amendments to PFRS 10: Sala or Contribution of
Assets between an [nvestor and its Associate or foint

Venture®

Not Early Adopted

PFRS 11 Joint Arrangaraents
: g

ot ot Opotons” Mot Early Adopied
PFRE 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to PFRS 12; Investment Entities
PFRS 12 Fair Value Measurement v

Amendment to PERS 13: Short-term Recalvables and v

Payables ‘

ﬁ:;;};ir:?; ct;:pl;i};f 13: Fair Value Measurement Not Barly Adopted
PFRE 14 "| Reguiatory Deferral Accounts* . Not Early Adopied
PFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers* Mot Barly Adopted
Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS)
PAS 1 Presentaticn of Financial Statements <
(Revised) Amendment fo PAS 1: Capital Disclosures 4

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttsble T

Financial Instruments and Cbligations Arising on

Liquidation’

Amendments to PAS 1; Presentation of Items of Other 7

Comprehensive Incomie : '
PAS 2 Inventories
PAST Statement of Cash Flows v
PAS B Accounting Policies, Changes it Accounting 7

Estimates and Brrors .
PAS 10 Fvents after the Reporting Period of
PAS 11 Congtruction: Contracts
—I:;:S 12 Income Taxes v

Amendment to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of

Underlying Assets . ' )
PAS 16 Praperty, Plant and Equipment

Amendment 10 PAS 16: Property, Plant and Not Early Adopted

Equipment - Revaluation Method - Pmportzonate




Restatement of Accumulated Depreciation*
. Amendment to PAS 16; Agriculture - Bearer Plants® Not Barly Adopted
PAS 17 Leases s
PAS 18 Revenue
PAS 12 Employee Benefits
PAS 1Y Employés Benefits
(Amended) - -
Amendments to PAS 19: Actusrial Gains and Losses,
) v
Group Pians and Disclosures
Amendments to PAS 19; Defined Benefit Plans: ‘ .
Eraploves Contributions* : Nt Barly Adopied
Amendments to PAS 19: Regional Market lssue : .
Regarding Discount.Rate* - Not Early Adopted
PASZ0 Accounting for Government Granté and Disclosure of : v
Government Agsistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates - <
Amendrment; Net Investment in & Foreign Operation ¢
PAS 23 'Bosrowmg»(:ests y
(Revised)
PAS 24 Related Party Disclosures
(Revised)
PAS 20 Accounting and Reporting by Retirement Benefit s
Plans
PAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements v
PAS 2T Separate Financial Statements s
(Amended) Amendents to PAS 27; Invesiment Entities e
A.mend:mems to PAS 27: Equity Method In Separate Not Early Adopted
_ Finaneiel Statements*
PAS 28 Investments in Associales v
PAS 28 Investments in Azsociaies and Joint Ventures o
(Amended) Amendments to PAS 28; Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Not Rarly Adopted
Venture®
PAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies vy
PAS 31 Interests in Jomnt Venfures v




Finaneial Tnstruments: Disclosure and Presettation

Amendments to PAS 32 and PAS 1: Puttable

Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on

Liquidation

Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights

1Issues

Amendments to PAS 32 Offsetting Financial Assets
and Finaneial Liabilities

PAS 33

Earnings per Siare '

PAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

' Amendments to PAS 34; Disclosure of information

‘Elsewhere in the interim Financial Report*

‘Not Early Adoptad

PAS 36

Impairment of Agsels

Amendinents to PAS 36: Recoverable Amount

| Disclosuras for Non-Financial Assets

PAS 37

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent .
Assets

PAS 39

Financial Instiments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial

Liabilities

Amendmients i PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge
Accounting of Forecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments fo PAS 39 and PFRS 4. F inancial
Guarantee Contracts

PAS 39

Amendments to PAS 39 and PFRS T Reclagsification
of Financial Assets

| Amendmets to PAS 39 and PFRS 7: Reclassification

of Financial Assets - Effective Date and Transition

Amendments to Philippine Intetpretation IFRIC-Y and
PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives )

Amendment to PAS 39: Eligible Hedged Items

Amendment to PAS 39: Recognition and
Measuretment - Novation of Derivatives and

Continuation of Fedge Accounting




Jar M
PAS 46

Invesiment Froperty

Amendment to PAS 40*

Not Early Adopted

| Instruments

PAS 41 Agriculture s
Amendment to PAS 41; Agriculture - Bearer Plants® Not Barly Adopted
Interpretations
IFRIC 1 . | Changes in Existing Decommissioning, Restoration v
and Similar Liabilities
{FRIC 2 Members' Share in Coroperative Entities and Similer /
Instruments
IFRIC 4 Qatérim‘ning_ Whether an Arrangement Contains 2 v
Lease
IFRICS Rights to Interests azising from Decommissioning, s
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds
IFRIC 6 Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific P
' Warket - Waste Electrical ad Electronic Equipment
+IFRICT Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 v
Financial Reporting in Hyperintlationary Economies
IFRICS Scope of PFRS 2 ¢
IFRIC 9 Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives '
' Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9 and /
PAS 39: Fmbedded Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Fipancial Reporting and Impairment o
IFRIC 11 PFRS 2 - Group and Treasury Share Transactions e
IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangeiments e
IFRIC 12 . Customer Loyalty Programunes .
IFRIC 14 The Limnit on a Defined Benefit Asser, Minirhum /
- | Funding Requitements and their Interaction :
Amendments to Philippine Imerpretét‘mns IFRIC-14, /
Prepayments of a Minimum F unding Requirement
IFRIC 18 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate™ Mot Barly Adopted
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in & Foreign Operaiion 4
IFRIC 17 1 Distributions of No-cash Assets to Owners <
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers g
IFRIC 1% Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity v




RIC 20 Siripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface 7

Minzs
| BFRIC 21 Levies

81C-7 Intraduction of the Euro v

SI1C-10 Government Agsistance - No Specific Relation to v
Cperating Activities _

BIC-12 Consclidation ~ Special Purpose Entities v
Amendment to 3IC - 12: Scope of 31C 12 v

SIC-13 Jointly Controiled Entities - Non-Meonetaly v
Contributions by Venturers '

SIC-15 Opera.tmg']‘..sases - Incentives v

S§1C-25 | Incame Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity v
or its Shareholders :

81C-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions involving 7

_ the §.egal Form of a Leage

S1C-29 Service Concession Arrangemenis: Disclosures s

BIC-31 Revenus - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising s
Services

8BIC-32 Intangibie Agsets - Web Site Costs o _E

* Sundards and interpreiations which will becomé gffective subsequent to December 34, 2014

Note: Standards and interpretations tagged as
which were adoptad but the entity has n

ended Devember 31, 2014,

“Not Applicable” are those standards and interpretations
o significant covered transaction as at and for the year



(GMa HOLDINGS, INC.,

I RECONCILIATION OF RETAINED K EARNINGS
AVATLABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014

Unappropriated retained earnings, beginning
‘Net income during the year closed to retained earmings

R180.628
350,187

Retained earnings - available for
dividend declaration as at December 31, 2014

£519,315




GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

IV, SCHEDULE OF FINANCIAL RATIOS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014

Financial Ratios Description 2014 2013
Current/liquidity ratio Current assets over current liabilities 0.57 1.01
Asset 10 equity ratio Total assets over total equity 41.76  166.73
Debt to equity ratio Total liabilities over total equity 4076 16573
EBITDA margin Earnings before interest, tax and depreciation and

037 (01D

amortization over total revenue




